
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY REGENERATION 

CABINET BOARD 
 

Immediately Following Scrutiny Committee on  
FRIDAY, 3 MARCH 2017 

 
COUNCIL CHAMBER - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE 

 

 
 
 

PART 1 
 

1.  To agree the Chairperson for this Meeting   
 

2.  To receive any declarations of interests from Members   
 

3.  To receive the Minutes of the previous Economic and Community 
Regeneration Cabinet Board held on 20 January, 2017 
(Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To receive the  Joint Report of the Head of Planning and Public 
Protection and the Head of Property and Regeneration 
 

4.  Economic and Community Regeneration Performance Indicators for 
Quarter 3 2016/17  (Pages 11 - 24) 
 
To receive the Report of the Head of Property and 
Regeneration 
 

5.  Property Asset Management Plan 2016 - 2021  (Pages 25 - 94) 
 

6.  Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairman pursuant to Statutory Instrument 2001 No 2290 (as 
amended)   
 



7.  Access to Meetings - to resolve to exclude the public for the 
following items pursuant to Regulation 4 (3) and (5) of Statutory 
Instrument 2001 No. 2290 and the relevant exempt paragraphs of 
Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.   
 
PART 2 
 
To receive the Private Joint Report of the Head of Property and 
Regeneration and Head of Highways and Engineering 
 

8.  Port Talbot Peripheral Distributor Road Phase 2 - Tata and Tata 
Sports and Social Club, Margam, Port Talbot 
(Exempt Under Paragraph 14)  (Pages 95 - 102) 
 
To receive the Private Reports of the Head of Property and 
Regeneration 
 

9.  Proposed Release of a Restrictive Covenant from Land at Baglan 
Industrial Park, Afan Way, Port Talbot 
(Exempt Under Paragraph 14)  (Pages 103 - 108) 
 

10.  Procurement Tender for the Disposal of the Former Afan Lido 
Leisure Centre and Overflow Car Park Site 
(Exempt Under Paragraph 14)  (Pages 109 - 116) 
 
To receive the Private Report of the Head of Transformation 
 

11.  Third Quarter Performance Review 2016-17 Celtic Leisure 
(Exempt Under Paragraph 14)  (Pages 117 - 120) 
 
To receive the Private Report of the Head of Corporate 
Strategy and Democratic Services 
 

12.  Urgency Action 1378 (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)  
(Pages 121 - 124) 
 

 
S.Phillips 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot Thursday, 23 February 2017 
 



 
 
Cabinet Board Members:  
 
Councillors: 
 

A.J.Taylor, M.L.James 
 

 
 
Notes:  
 
 (1)  If any Cabinet Board Member is unable to attend, any other Cabinet Member may substitute as a 

voting Member on the Committee.  Members are asked to make these arrangements direct and 
then to advise the committee Section.   

 
(2) The views of the earlier Scrutiny Committee are to be taken into account in arriving at decisions 

(pre decision scrutiny process).  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 36 - 
 

200117 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD 

 
CABINET BOARD - 20 JANUARY, 2017 

 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY REGENERATION CABINET BOARD 

 

 
 
Cabinet Board Members: 
 
Councillors: 
 

A.J.Taylor (Chairperson) and M.L.James 
 

Officers in Attendance: 
 
S.Brennan and Mrs.T.Davies 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  

 
That Councillor A.J.Taylor be appointed as Chairperson for the meeting. 
 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION CABINET BOARD HELD ON 9 DECEMBER, 2016  
 
Noted by the Committee. 
 
 

3. REVIEW OF THE TOURISM SUPPORT IN NEATH PORT TALBOT  
 
Decisions: 
 
1. That a dedicated resource be identified to drive forward tourism 

support within Neath Port Talbot;  
 

2. That the Destination Management Plan be considered by the 
Economic and Community Regeneration Scrutiny Committee on a 
regular basis to ensure the actions are implemented;  
 

3. That an All Member Seminar be organised to highlight the findings 
of the review, that demonstrates how important the tourism sector 
is in the County Borough;  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 37 - 
 

200117 

4. That a letter be written and sent to St Modwens to establish what 
they understand their responsibilities are in relation to Neath Canal, 
and stress the importance of the maintenance that is required.  
 

Reason for Decisions: 
 
To ensure that Neath Port Talbot continues to be an attractive 
destination for tourists, and tourism is supported efficiently and 
effectively within the County Borough. 
 
Implementation of Decisions: 
 
The decisions will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
 

4. TWO SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE DOCUMENTS  
 
Decisions: 
 
1. That the Open Space and Greenspace Supplementary Planning 

Guidance, and the Development and the Welsh Language 
Supplementary Planning Guidance as set out at Appendices 1 – 2 
of the circulated report, be agreed as forming the basis for 
consultation; 

 
2. That approval be granted for the publication and consultation 

procedures to commence after the Local Government Elections 
2017. 

 
Reasons for Decisions: 
 
1. To ensure that clear guidance is issued by the Council in respect of 

Open Space and Greenspace and Development, and the Welsh 
Language; 

 
2. To ensure that a consultation exercise is undertaken so that the 

guidance carries full weight when planning applications and/or 
appeals are considered. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



- 38 - 
 

200117 

Implementation of Decisions: 
 
The decisions will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
Consultation: 
 
This item will be subject to external consultation. 
 
 

5. PROPERTY PERFORMANCE REPORT 2016  
 
Decision: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

6. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17  
 
Decision: 
 
That the Forward Work Programme 2016/17 be noted. 
 
 

7. ACCESS TO MEETINGS  
 
Decision: 
 
That pursuant to Regulation 4(3) and (5) of Statutory Instrument 2001 
No. 2290, the public be excluded for the following items of business 
which involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
 

8. ENERGY/CARBON AND WATER PERFORMANCE 2016  
 
Decision: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



- 39 - 
 

200117 

9. ABERAVON HOUSE REDEVELOPMENT  
 
Decisions: 
 
1. That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Property and 

Regeneration to agree the final amount of the grant to be payable 
to Tai Gwalia Cyf for the redevelopment of Aberavon House, 
following consultation with the Welsh Government as to the amount 
to be made available; 

 
2. That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Property and 

Regeneration to enter into a grant agreement and any associated 
documentation with Tai Gwalia Cyf, for the redevelopment of 
Aberavon House. 

 
Reason for Decisions: 
 
To secure the Welsh Government Vibrant and Viable Places grant and to 
ensure that the Council’s position is safeguarded in the award of the 
grant to Gwalia. 
 
Implementation of Decisions: 
 
The decisions will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
 

10. PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF THE PROPERTY KNOWN AS 
GLANAFAN COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL, PORT TALBOT  
 
Decisions: 

 
1. That the terms for the disposal of the former Glanafan 

Comprehensive School in Port Talbot (as detailed within the private 
circulated report) which are the best that can reasonably be 
obtained for the charity, be agreed; 

 
2. That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Property and 

Regeneration for the disposal of the former Glanafan 
Comprehensive School in Port Talbot, to Coastal Housing Group, 
for the sum as detailed within the private circulated report;  

 
3. That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Property and 

Regeneration to agree the final amount of the grant to be payable 

Page 8



- 40 - 
 

200117 

to Coastal Housing Group for the redevelopment of Glanafan 
Comprehensive School;  

 
4. That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Property and 

Regeneration to enter into a grant agreement and any associated 
documentation with Coastal Housing Group, for the redevelopment 
of Glanafan Comprehensive School. 

 
Reason for Decisions: 
 
To enable the sale of a surplus property and to attain a capital receipt. 
 
Implementation of Decisions: 
 
The decisions will be implemented after the three day call in period. 
 
Consultation: 
 
The Local Ward Members have been consulted on this item. 
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Economic and Community Regeneration Cabinet Board 

 
3rd March 2017 

 
 JOINT REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC 

PROTECTION – N. PEARCE AND THE HEAD OF PROPERTY AND 
REGENERATION – S. BRENNAN 

 

Matter for Monitoring 
 

Wards Affected: ALL 

 

ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY REGENERATION PERFORMANCE   
INDICATORS FOR QUARTER 3 OF 2016/17 

 
1 Quarterly Performance Management Data 2016-2017 – Quarter 3 

Performance (1st April – 31st December 2016) 

Purpose of the Report  
 
2 To report quarter 3 performance management data for the period 

1st April to 31st December 2016 for Environment. This will enable 
the Economic and Community Regeneration Cabinet Board and 
Scrutiny Members to discharge their functions in relation to 
performance management.  

 

Executive Summary 
 
3 In line with the Council’s six improvement priorities embedded 

within the Corporate Improvement Plan, Environment scrutinise 
performance within Economic Development, Planning, Building 
Control and Asset Management. On the whole performance 
demonstrates improvement in line with what we planned to deliver, 
with statutory deadlines being met. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4.



Background  

 4 The role of Scrutiny Committees was amended at the Annual 
Meeting of Council in May 2010 to reflect the changes introduced 
by the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009; Environment will: 

 
• Scrutinise the performance of all services and the extent to which 

services are continuously improving. 
 
• Ensure performance measures are in place for each service and 

that the measures reflect what matters to local citizens. 
 

   •    Promote innovation by challenging the status quo and encourage   
            different ways of thinking and options for service delivery 

 
Failure to produce a compliant report within the timescales can lead 
to non-compliance with our Constitution. Furthermore failure to 
have robust performance monitoring arrangements could result in 
poor performance going undetected. 

  

Financial Impact  

5 The performance described in the report is being delivered against 
a challenging financial background. 

Equality Impact Assessment  

6 None required. 

Workforce Impacts 

     7 During 2015/16, the Environment Directorate saw a further 
downsizing of its workforce (by 87 employees) as it sought to 
deliver savings of 2.717 million in the year. 

Legal Impacts 

8 This progress report is prepared under: 
 

1. The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and discharges 
the Council’s duties to “make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the exercise of its functions”.  

 

Page 12



2. The Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Constitution 
requires each cabinet committee to monitor quarterly budgets 
and performance in securing continuous improvement of all the 
functions within its purview.  

Risk Management 

9 Failure to produce a compliant report within the timescales can lead 
to non – compliance with our Constitution. Also failure to have 
robust performance monitoring arrangements could result in poor 
performance going undetected. 

Consultation 

10  No requirement to consult 

Recommendations  

11  Members monitor performance contained within this report. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision  

     12  Matter for monitoring. No decision required. 

Implementation of Decision 

13    Matter for monitoring. No decision required. 

Appendices  

  14 Appendix 1 - Quarterly Performance Management Data 2016-
2017– Quarter 3 Performance (1st April to 31st December 2016) – 
APPENDIX 1  

List of Background Papers 

15 The Neath Port Talbot Corporate Improvement Plan - 2015/2018 
“Rising to the Challenge”; 

Officer Contact 

16 Joy Smith, Road Safety and Business Performance Manager 
 Tel.  01639 686581 
 Email:  j.smith@npt.gov.uk 

  

Page 13

http://www.npt.gov.uk/Default.aspx?page=13270


 
Appendix 1 

 

 
 

Quarterly Performance Management Data 2016-2017– Quarter 3 
Performance (1st April to 31st December 2016) 
 

Report Contents:  
 
Section 1: Key Points 
 
Section 2: Quarterly Performance Management Data and Performance 
Key  
 
Section 3: Compliments & Complaints Data 

 
 

Section 1: Key Points 
 
Economic Development 
 
The Economic Development Team continues to deal with a significant 
number of requests for support from local businesses.  So far this year 
these requests have, in general, been of a more positive nature as many 
businesses are considering investing in expansion and growth.  Many of 
these investments will attract new private sector investment and support 
the creation of new and the safeguarding of existing jobs within the County 
Borough.  It is anticipated, therefore, that overall performance will increase 
as 2016/17 year progresses. 
 
The team also played a major role in ensuring Enterprise Zone status for 
Port Talbot Waterfront which is already providing significant financial 
benefit to local businesses through Business Rates Relief.  Continued 
partnership working with Welsh Government should help further promote 
economic growth and job creation in the area. 
 
Providing advice and support to individuals considering starting up in 
business is also a priority.  This year there has been a significant increase 
in the number of local residents considering self-employment and this is 

Page 14



reflected in the popularity of the Enterprise Club that the Team runs from 
the Sandfields Business Centre. 
 
In addition, the team continues to work closely with the Workways + project, 
Careers Wales, Department of Works and Pensions and Welsh 
Government to help those facing redundancy from Tata while also 
providing support to the many local businesses within their supply chain 
that have to deal with staff losses or look for new markets.   
 
Planning 
 
The third quarter continues the significant improvement in the average time 
taken to validate applications (PLA/M001) in addition to the time taken to 
determine applications from received date to determination (PLA/M002).  
This is as a consequence of the introduction of “invalidity notices” in March 
2016 and associated new internal processes.  While there remains an 
increasing focus on “front-loading” discussions on applications and 
determination of applications swiftly wherever possible, planning 
performance overall has, however, fallen compared to the same quarter in 
2015/16.  A further review of processes having regard to the new legislative 
changes is therefore underway to improve efficiencies, reduce bureaucracy 
and reduce delays.  This should, in turn, improve our overall performance 
going forward having regard to the 8 week statutory deadlines. 
 
Building Control  
 
It is regrettable to report a slight drop in performance in both BCT004 and 
BCT007 in comparison with the figures reported last year. 
 
The drop in performance is anticipated to be only temporary and due wholly 
to staffing issues related to the sudden and unexpected departure of an 
experienced member of staff.  The recruitment process for a replacement is 
now complete and training of the new member of staff ongoing 
 
It must be stressed that at no time have any legal targets been missed. 
 
Asset Management 
 
Local Authority buildings conditions and maintenance are annual indicators 
and will be reported during the quarter 4 period of 2016/17. 
 
 

Page 15



 

Section 2: Quarterly Performance Management Data and Performance Key  
 
                            2016-2017 – Quarter 3  Performance (1st April to 31st December 2016) 
 

Note: The following references are included in the table. Explanations for these are as follows: 
 

(NSI)  National Strategic Indicators (NSIs) - are used to measure the performance of local authorities at a national level 
and focus on key strategic priorities. The Welsh Government recently published a written statement confirming the 
revocation of the Local Government (Performance Indicators) (Wales) Order 2012. As such, 2015-16 will be the final year 
of collection of the former National Strategic Indicators (NSIs) by Welsh Government. In order to ensure minimal 
disruption for local authorities, many of whom will have included these indicators in their improvement plans for the 
current financial year, the WLGA’s (Welsh Local Government Association) coordinating committee agreed that local 
authorities should collect them alongside the PAMs for 2016-17.  
 
(PAM)  Public Accountability Measures - consist of a small set of “outcome focussed” indicators, selected initially from 
within the existing Performance Measurement Framework. They will reflect those aspects of local authority work which 
local authorities agree are considered to be important in terms of public accountability. For example, recycling, 
educational attainment, sustainable development, etc. This information is required and reported nationally, validated, and 
published annually. 
 
(SID)  Service Improvement Data - can be used by local authority services and their regulators as they plan, deliver and 
improve services.  

 
All Wales - The data shown in this column is the figure calculated using the base data supplied by all authorities for 
2015/2016 i.e. an overall performance indicator value for Wales.  
 
 (L)     Local Performance Indicator set by the Council. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 16



 

 
 

 

 

 Performance Key 

 Maximum Performance 

↑ Performance has improved 

↔ Performance has been maintained 

v Performance is within 5% of previous year’s performance 

↓ 
Performance has declined by 5% or more on previous year’s performance - Where 
performance has declined by 5% or more for the period in comparison to the previous 
year, an explanation is provided directly below the relevant performance indicator. 

─ No comparable data (data not suitable for comparison /no data available for comparison) 

 No All Wales data available for comparison. 

 
2015/16 NPT performance in upper quartile (top six of 22 local authorities) in comparison 
with All Wales national published measures (NSI & PAM’s).  

 2015/16 NPT performance in mid quartiles (7th – 16th) in comparison with All Wales 
national published measures (NSI & PAM’s).  

 2015/16 NPT performance in lower quartile (17th – 22nd) in comparison with All Wales 
national published measures (NSI & PAM’s).  

 

 

 

   1
st
 – 6

th
  

 7
th

 – 16
th

  

17
th

 – 22
nd

  

P
age 17



 

1. Planning and Regulatory Services – Planning 
 

No 
PI 

Reference 
PI Description 

NPT 
Actual 

2014/15 

NPT 
Actual 

2015/16 

All Wales 
2015/16 

NPT 
Quarter 3 
2015/16 

NPT 
Quarter 3 
2016/17 

 
Direction of 

Improvement 
 

1 
PLA/M001 

(Local) 
Average time taken from receipt of application to 
validation of application - days 

30.6 days 31.5 days  31.6 days 

15.4 days 
(9034 days over 

588 
applications) 

↑ 

2 
PLA/M002 

(Local) 
Average time taken from receipt of application to 
date decision is issued - days 

82.7 
days 

96.1 days  
95.8 
days 

84.7 days 

(49816 days 
over 588 

applications) 

↑ 

3 
PLA/M004 

(Local) 
The percentage of major planning applications 
determined during the year within 8 weeks.   

30.4% 16%  11.76% 
14.3%  

(2 of 14 
applications) 

↑ 

4 
PLA/004d 

(SID) 
The percentage of all other planning applications 
determined during the year within 8 weeks. 

79% 70.3%  80.8% 
76.9%  

(160 of 208 
applications) 

↓ 

 
The complexity of major applications determined in the period means that the statutory 8 week target is often difficult to achieve, with increasing focus 

nationally now on determining such applications within an “agreed period of time”.  Nevertheless, performance on major applications is soon to be the 

subject of an internal review to ensure that resources and processes are focused on delivering major developments planning permission in a timely manner. 

5 
PLA/004c 

(SID) 

The percentage of householder planning 
applications determined during the year within 8 
weeks. 

87.4% 95.1%  96.2% 
93.8%  

(210 of 224 
applications) 

v 

6 
PLA/004b 

(SID) 

 
The percentage of minor planning applications 
determined during the year within 8 weeks.        
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

63.5% 66.1%  65.1% 
57.7%  

(82 of 142 
applications) 

↓ 

 
The regrettable drop in performance for PLA/004 (b), (c) and (d) has been as a result of the range and complexity of applications handled in the period, and 

challenging circumstances including the absence on long-term sickness of a member of the team 

 

P
age 18



 

1. Planning and Regulatory Services – Planning (Cont…) 
 

 7 
PLA/002 

(SID) 
The percentage of applications for development 
determined during the year that were approved 

96.4% 96.3%  96.7% 
96.6%  

(568 of 588 
applications) 

↔ 

8 
PLA/006(b) 

(Former 
NSI) 

The number of additional affordable housing units 
provided during the year as a percentage of all 
additional housing units provided during the year.  
 

42% 30% 

 
36% 

 
Reported Annually ─ 

 

 

2. Planning and Regulatory Services – Building Control 

No 
PI 

Reference 
PI Description 

NPT 
Actual 

2014/15 

NPT 
Actual 

2015/16 

   All Wales           
2015/16 

NPT 
Quarter 3 
2015/16 

NPT 
Quarter 3 

2016/17 

 
Direction of 

Improvement 
 

9 
BCT/007 
(SID) 

The percentage of ‘full plan’ applications approved first 
time. 

96.6% 99.02%  98.75% 
95.37% 

(103 out of 
108) 

v 

10 
BCT/004 

(SID) 

Percentage of Building Control ‘full plan’ applications 
checked within 15 working days during the year. 
 
 

100% 95.12%  95.86% 
94.44% 

(102 out of 
108) 

v 

3. Economic Development 

11 
L(ED) 2 
(Local) 

 
Number of new business start-up enquiries assisted 
through Business Services  
 

361 271  187 222 ↑ 

 

As a direct result of the Council’s Innov8 programme of support for new businesses and the Team working in partnership with key 
organisations to support individuals affected by the Tata redundancies, the number of people attending the Council’s Enterprise Club, which 
provides advice and guidance on self-employment, has increased when compared to the same period last year 
 

12th  

P
age 19



 

3. Economic Development (Cont…) 
 

12 
 

L(ED) 1 
(Local) 

Number of jobs created as a result of financial support 
by the Local Authority. 
 

187 184  150 85 ↓ 

 
Although lower than the same period last year, the Team is currently in the process of administering a number of applications from local 
businesses for funding to support investments in areas such as capital equipment, website development, accreditations, training and general 
marketing activities.  It is anticipated therefore that performance will increase significantly by the end of this financial year 

13 
L(ED) 3 
(Local) 

Number of business enquiries resulting in advice, 
information or financial support being given to existing 
companies through Business Services. 

686 584  435 367 ↓ 

 

The Team receives a high volume of enquiries from existing businesses looking for support on a range of issues such as property, rates relief, local 
contract opportunities, tendering, events, etc.  Despite outputs being down in comparison to the same period last year, there are a number of events and 
other activities planned for the next quarter which will have a positive impact on performance during the last quarter the financial year. 
 

 

 

4. Corporate Health – Asset Management 
 

No 
PI 

Reference 
PI Description 

NPT 
Actual 

2014/15 

NPT 
Actual 

2015/16 

All Wales 
2015/16 

NPT 
Quarter 3 
2015/16 

NPT 
 Quarter 3 
2016/17 

 
Direction of 

Improvement 
 

14 
CAM/001ai 

(SID) 

The percentage of the gross internal area of the local 
authority’s buildings in condition categories:                                                                                                                                                                   
A – Good                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

 7.21% 7.68% 

 

 
Reported Annually 

 
 

Reported Annually 
 

 
 
 

Reported Annually 
 
 

─ 

15 
CAM/001aiii 

(SID) 

The percentage of the gross internal area of the local 
authority’s buildings in condition categories:                                                                                                                                    
C – Poor  

 39.79% 38.22% ─ 

16 
CAM/001bii 

(SID) 

The percentage of the total value of required 
maintenance for the local authority’s buildings 
assigned to works of priority level:                                                                     
2 – Essential work  

 56.72% 50.76% ─ 
 

 

P
age 20



4. Corporate Health – Asset Management (Cont…) 
 

17 
CAM/001 

biii 
(SID) 

The percentage of the total value of required 
maintenance for the local authority’s buildings 
assigned to works of priority level:                                                                                         
 3 – Desirable work 

28.17% 27.29% 

 Reported Annually 

─ 

18 
CAM/001aii 

(SID) 

The percentage of the gross internal area of the local 
authority’s buildings in condition categories:                                                                                                                
 B – Satisfactory 

43.33% 42.83% ─ 

19 
CAM/001aiv 

(SID) 

The percentage of the gross internal area of the local 
authority’s buildings in condition categories:                                                                                                                                 
 D – Bad   

 9.67% 11.27% ─ 

20 
CAM/037 

(PAM) 

The percentage change in the average Display Energy 
Certificate (DEC) score within local authority public 
buildings over 1,000 square metres. 

6.8% 4.4% ─ 

21 
CAM//001bi 

(SID) 

The percentage of the total value of required 
maintenance for the local authority’s buildings 
assigned to works of priority level:  
1 – Urgent work                                                                                                                                                                                                      

15.11% 21.95% ─ 

 

 

P
age 21



 

Section 3: Compliments and Complaints  
 
  2016/2017 – Quarter 3 (1st April 2016 – 31st December 2016) – Cumulative Data for ECR Board 

 

 Performance Key 

↑ Improvement : Reduction in Complaints/ Increase in Compliments 

↔ No change in the number of Complaints/Compliments 

v Increase in Complaints but within 5% / Reduction in Compliments but within 5% of previous year. 

↓ Increase in Complaints by 5% or more / Reduction in Compliments by 5% or more of previous year. 

No 
 

PI Description 
Full Year 
2015/16 

Quarter 3 
2015/16 

Quarter 3 
 2016/17 

Direction of 
Improvement 

 

1 

 
Total Complaints - Stage 1   
 

3 1 3 ↓ 

a - Complaints - Stage 1  upheld 0 0 0 

 b -Complaints - Stage 1  not upheld 3 1 2 

c -Complaints - Stage 1  partially upheld 0 0 1 

P
age 22



 

 

No 
 

PI Description 
Full Year 
2015/16 

Quarter 3 
2015/16 

Quarter 3 
 2016/17 

Direction of 
Improvement 

 

 

2 

 

 
Total Complaints - Stage 2   

15 10 4 ↑ 

a - Complaints - Stage 2  upheld 0 0 0 

 b - Complaints - Stage 2  not upheld 15 10 4 

c- Complaints - Stage 2  partially upheld 0 0 0 

3 

Total -  Ombudsman investigations 0 0 1 ↓ 

a - Complaints - Ombudsman investigations upheld 0 0 0 

 

b - Complaints - Ombudsman investigations not upheld 0 0 1 

4 
 
Number of Compliments 

5 3 4 ↑ 

 

 

Complaints:  There has been a slight increase in the number of Stage 1 complaints this quarter compared to the same quarter last year. However, 
there has been a significant reduction in the number of Stage 2 complaints compared to the same quarter last year.   
 
The figure for Ombudsman investigations is a cumulative figure which may relate to previous quarters.  However, due to the timescales involved this 
information may not be readily available during the reporting of previous quarters 
 
Compliments:  There has been a slight increase in the number of compliments recorded compared to the same quarter last year. 
 
Welsh Language – There were no Welsh Language complaints reported during this quarter 

 
 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Economic and Community Regeneration Cabinet Board  
 

Report of the Head of Property & Regeneration  
Simon Brennan 

 
3rd March 2017 

 
 

MATTER FOR DECISION 
 
WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 
 
PROPERTY ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 2016 – 2021 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1 For Members to approve the Council’s Second Property Asset 

Management Plan 2016 – 2021. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
2 To present to Members the Property Asset Management Plan 

2016-2021 
 
Background 
 
 
3 The Property Asset Management Plan sets out the Council’s 

proposals for the effective use of its property assets to support the 
delivery of quality public services and major regeneration 
initiatives. 

 
4 The Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021 supersedes and 
 builds on the previous 2011-2016 plan. It focuses on the strategy 
 for each part of the property portfolio rather than on the 
 mechanisms for managing our assets. As with all strategies, it 
 must be viewed  as a ‘direction of travel’ rather than a blueprint for 
 the future. It will  be reviewed, as necessary, to reflect changing 
 circumstances and to ensure that it reflects the Council’s primary 
 aims and objectives. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5.



5 The Property Asset Management Plan should not be viewed in 
isolation. It links to, feeds off, and reacts to a range of corporate 
plans, programmes and strategies, including the Forward Financial 
Plan and the ICT Strategy. 

 
6 As a five-year plan, the Property Asset Management Plan is of of 

course a strategic document. It should be noted however that the 
Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is reshaping 
the way the Council will plan and deliver services in the future and 
this plan will have to react to and change in line with the Council’s  
proposed future well-being goals. 

 
7 A presentation of the Plan will be made at Board. 
 
 
Financial Impact 
 
8 There are no financial implications. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
9  This report does not require an Equality Impact Assessment. 
 
Workforce Impact 
 
10  There are no significant impacts on the Property and Regeneration 

Sections resources. 
 
Legal Impact 
 
11 There are no legal impacts associated with this report 
 
Risk Management 
 
12 There are no risk management issues associated with this report. 
 
Consultation 
 
13 There has been no requirement under the Constitution for external 

consultation on this item. 
  
 
 

Page 26



 
Sustainability 

 
14 The Asset Management Plan provides the framework that 

underpins the Council’s ownership and use of property for the 
delivery and support of frontline services. Its impact is therefore 
wide ranging but specifically it impacts on:-  
 

 Economic prosperity by developing the Council’s non-
operational portfolio.  

  Better health and wellbeing via the successful transfer of 
leisure/recreation services to the third sector and community 
groups. 

 Education and lifelong learning by continuing to deliver and 
support the SSIP Programme.  

 Environment and transport by promoting the regeneration of the 
County Borough and linking to the Council’s Highways Asset 
Management Plan.  

 
15 Other impacts:-  

 Sustainability by helping reduce the Council’s use of energy and 
CO2 emissions by disposing of surplus and inefficient buildings.  

 Equality by promoting accessibility within Council premises.  
 

  
 Recommendations 

 
16 That the Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021 be adopted.  

 
Reasons for Proposed Decision 
 
17 To provide a framework for the management and development of 

the Council’s property portfolio over the next five years. 
 

 Implementation of Decision 
 

18 The decision will be implemented after a 3 day call in period. 
 
Appendices 
 
19 Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021 
 

Page 27



 
List of Background Papers 
 
20 Single Integrated Plan 2013-2023 
 Corporate Improvement Plan 2016-2019 
 The Well –Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 
 
Officer Contact 
 

 21 Simon Brennan, Head of Property & Regeneration   
 Tel: 01639 686370 
 Email: s.brennan@npt.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2016-2021 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 

Page 29



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

1 

 

Foreword 

 

his second Plan again sets out the Council’s proposals for the 

effective use of its property assets to support the delivery of 

quality public services and major regeneration initiatives. The 

document represents a commitment to adopt a genuinely strategic 

approach to the consideration of our property and accommodation 

requirements The Council is proud of its past successes in delivering 

innovative asset management solutions and in supporting wide 

ranging regeneration initiatives. 

 

However, the difficult financial challenge facing all public 

organisations at both a local and a national level ensures that we will 

need to work even harder to ensure that we have a sustainable 

portfolio that delivers value for money. I am very pleased with this 

new report setting out the next 5 year plan for 2016-2021 and I thank 

all those who have been involved in its preparation. Nonetheless, we 

must not be complacent. It is not sufficient just to prepare a strategy. 

We must implement it and get the benefits that it promises. 

 

“I am very pleased with this Plan and I thank all those who have been 

involved in its preparation.  Nonetheless, we must not be 

complacent.  It is not sufficient just to prepare a strategy.  We must 

implement it and get the benefits that it promises.” 

 

 

 

Councillor Ali Thomas OBE    

Leader of the Council  

T 

Page 30



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

2 

  Contents 

 

 

 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 03 

 

The Importance of Asset Management in a National Context ...................................................... 05 

 

How NPT Manages its Property  .................................................................................................... 07 

 

Review of 2011-2016 plan – How far have we come? .................................................................. 10 

 

The Portfolio Revisited – How has it changed since the last plan? ............................................... 32 

 

The Councils Corporate Improvement Objectives ........................................................................ 37 

 

Property Objectives Review .......................................................................................................... 49 

 

Asset Strategy – Has it changed ? .................................................................................................. 53 

 

Asset Action Plan Summary ........................................................................................................... 61 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

3 

 

                      Introduction 

 

Due to the successful delivery of the previous 5 year plan from 2011-2016, it is proposed to 

implement another 5 year plan, adopting and concentrating on the relatively well established work 

plan and key priority initiatives of that first incarnation. 

This asset management plan will again provide a framework and context within which property 

decisions will be made, to build on the progress made to date in respect of the rigorous planning of 

the Council’s property and accommodation requirements to maximise the service benefits we get 

from our property, to ensure that staff productivity is maximised and ultimately, that our property is 

used as efficiently as possible. 

The Corporate Property Asset Management Plan for property assets (AMP) for Neath Port Talbot 

County Borough Council covers the next five financial years from 2016/17 to 2020/21 and outlines 

part of the Council’s strategic planning framework and should be seen and read alongside other 

corporate documents , particularly the  Councils Single Integrated Plan and Corporate Improvement 

Plan. 

As with all strategies, it must be viewed as ‘direction of travel’ rather than a blueprint for the future. 

The AMP is not a static document and will be reviewed, if necessary on an annual basis, to reflect 

changing circumstances, and to ensure that it reflects the Council’s primary aims and objectives. It is 

part of a process designed to engage Members and officers in a debate about the nature of and 

future direction for the management of the County Council’s property portfolio. It is intended to 

promote a common understanding of property and to set a direction for its management over the 

medium term. 

It has been established through the adoption of the former Asset Management Plan 2011-2016 that 

there is a need to continue developing  and reviewing  the Councils property asset base both in terms 

of delivering efficiencies savings for key front line services within an ever more challenging financial 

climate.  There is also a continuing need to maximise the revenue and capital receipts of the Councils 

asset base whilst all the time contributing to the delivery of the Councils Key priorities.  

Regeneration strategies, a review of the way we work, and collaborative working will be key issues 

for the next 5 years.  Central Government are encouraging increased collaborative working with 

neighbouring authorities in the delivery of joint services and community groups   through the 

empowerment of the communities to take on services and functions via the transfer of assets to the 

Page 32



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

4 

community. This will necessitate the delivery of a more formalised framework for the transfer of 

assets and the provision of ongoing support for these groups to ensure the continued success of the 

current programme of asset transfer.  

The plan will cover all land and buildings owned by the Council (including operational premises and 

indirect non-operational commercial assets). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

5 

 The Importance of Asset Management in a National Context 

 

The management of the public estate is seen as a significant driver to improving public services 

throughout Wales which is recognised by the Welsh Government. 

The Welsh Government says, “Asset management planning is central to the achievement of excellent 

property control and delivery of financial priorities”. 

As a result Welsh Government has developed resources to include The National Asset Working Group 

(NAWG) and Asset Cymru Wales to provide national guidance on this key area of work.  

The National Assets Working Group (NAWG) is a cross Welsh public sector group focussed on 

encouraging the different institutions to share and learn from best practice within and without Wales 

and looks to enable and influence organisations to adopt a collaborative approach in asset 

management. 

The Group has put in place the tools to help do this and shares best practice guidance and case 

studies. 

Objectives of NAWG 

The Group seeks to support and encourage the realisation of the efficiencies and benefits that can be 

derived from proactive, strategic estate management and its role in providing high quality support for 

the delivery of public services. The public sector estate is estimated at around £12bn (Wales Audit 

Office) with annual running costs of circa £500 million. 

The Group shares best practice guidance and case studies, and manages a number of projects. Those 

projects of particular interest to the asset management function are: 

1. e-PIMS (Electronic Property Information Mapping Service) 

e-PIMS is the electronic property information and mapping service maintained by Cabinet Office for 

the public sector in the UK. 

The modified version used in Wales provides a public sector property database for properties and 

land. 

It has been described as a "who's got what where" for property in the UK public sector. It informs the 

decision making process by identifying relocation, co-location and disposal opportunities. 

Page 34



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

6 

NPT’s contribution to e-PIMS 

The Council has signed up to sharing its key asset data with Welsh Government and has successfully 

populated the e-PIMS database. Our on-going access to the system provides us with an invaluable 

tool for the future in our drive to build upon and improve our collaborative working initiatives. 

 

The e-PIMS database runs alongside the Councils Total Property Management System (TPMS). It 

should be noted that the Councils maintenance of its e-PIMS records is in addition to its maintenance 

of TPMS. As such additional resource is required to maintain the two databases. In future we will be 

looking at opportunities to link the database interfaces so that any maintenance on TPMS will 

automatically inform and update e-PIMS, thus increasing efficiencies. 

There has also been significant interest in uploading the Councils vacant and surplus property 

opportunities on the database, as all users receive updates and can access the system to interrogate 

records at any time. The National Assets Working Group (NAWG) envisages e-PIMS as the primary 

tool for hosting any surplus property assets for the public sector in Wales. 

2. Space Cymru 

Space Cymru advertises public sector property that's available to let or buy. As part of our 

involvement with the e-PIMS database the Council has automatic access to Space Cymru for the 

advertising of Surplus property in addition to already established and developed portals for marketing 

our property for sale and to let. 

3. Land Transfer Protocol 

Sets out advice by the National Assets Working Group (NAWG) for a best practice solution for the 

transfer or disposal of land between public bodies in Wales.  

4. Community Asset Transfers in Wales – A Best Practice Guide 

Guidance has been recently published which intends to provide national guidance on the approach to 

asset property transfer.  

 

The Council’s developing Community Assets Transfer (CAT) will have regard to the Welsh 

Government guidance. The NPT Strategic Asset Management team is embarking on leading and 

developing a collaborative Community Asset Working Group, involving all Councils in South Wales, 

through our involvement with the National Assets Working Group and the Association of Chief 

Estates Surveyors in Wales (ACES). 

 

Click to link to National Asset Working Group 

Page 35



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

7 

 How NPT Manages its Property 

 

There has been no significant change in the way property is managed in the Authority, since the last 

plan. Property is still managed on behalf of the Council by the Property and Regeneration Division of 

the Environmental Directorate, however there has been internal re-structuring of valuation, facilities 

management and asset management teams.  This service covers: 

• Architectural Design and Project Management- including mechanical and electrical, structural 

engineers and building surveying functions. 

• Strategic Property and Valuation which carries out the following functions: 

1. Estates and Valuation. 

2. Facilities management of Civic Buildings. 

3. Strategic Property Asset Management. 

• Regeneration and Economic Development  

The Council manages its property portfolio on a Corporate basis and at officer level there are number 

of Corporate Groups where Corporate property matters are dealt with: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Corporate Directors 

Group 

   Specific 

      Property 

          Project 

           Groups 

             Corporate 

Improvement 

Priorities 

Maintenance 

        Groups 

      Capital 

Programme 

Steering 

Group 

SAM 

Page 36



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

8 

Strategic Asset Management (SAM) Group  

Provides a corporate view on the management of the Council’s operational and non-operational 

property portfolio and its links with other Council assets. Each Directorate is represented including 

the Heads of Corporate ICT, Strategic Personnel, Finance and Property & Regeneration. 

 

Corporate Directors Group (CDG) 

Considers property related matters on specific property related projects and also as part of the 

strategic decision making process for the Council.   

 

Capital Programme Steering Group (CPSG) 

Comprises the Head of Property & Regeneration, Head of Financial Services, Head of Corporate 

Strategy. It proposes the Council’s Capital Programme and monitors the progress and spend on major 

capital schemes. 

 

Non Housing Maintenance Group  

(chaired by the Head of Property & Regeneration)- allocates and monitors the revenue maintenance 

budgets across the operational portfolio (excluding Comprehensive Schools). 

 

Corporate Improvement Priorities 

These reflect specific areas where the Council wishes to see improvement in the short to medium 

term. 

1. Safer Brighter Futures – better outcomes for children & young people. 

2. Better Schools, Brighter Prospects – strategic school improvement programme. 

3. Improving Outcomes, Improving Lives – promoting high quality, responsive citizen centred 

social care. 

4. Prosperity for All – promoting economic growth. 

5. Reduce, Reuse, Recycle – towards zero waste. 

6. Digital by Choice – improving customer experience, making better use of public money. 

 

• Digital by Choice programme board set up to provide more choice for our customers and make 

it easier for people to access services and at a time convenient for them. 

• Specific property related ‘task and finish ‘groups that are set up to deal with special projects. 

Page 37



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

9 

Responsibility for property decision making ultimately lies with members and generally this involves: 

• The Cabinet is the decision-making forum for all major strategic property matters. 

• The Economic and Community Regeneration Board makes general property decisions and in 

particular property decisions relating to the economy and regeneration of the County Borough. 

• Economic and Community Regeneration Scrutiny Committee monitors and where necessary, 

challenges Economic Community and Regeneration Board decisions. 

The Head of Property and Regeneration is the lead officer for all property related matters and has 

delegated powers to make a range of property related decisions below specified values. 

 

Delivery, Monitoring and Evaluating Improvement 

The AMP currently feeds into the Corporate & 

Single Integrated Plans. To ensure we are on 

track to deliver our objectives, the delivery of 

this plan will currently be monitored through 

the Council’s Corporate Performance 

Management Framework which is summarised 

in the diagram opposite. The delivery of the 

AMP plan will be supported by detailed 

Directorate Business Plans (produced by each 

Head of Service) which will set out in more 

detail how the objectives will be delivered as 

well as more information on other activities 

not included. At the service level, Service 

Report Cards will set out the operational 

contribution to the objectives and other 

operational activities undertaken by those 

services. Each individual employee’s 

contribution will be captured through Staff 

Appraisals. 

 

 

Page 38



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

10 

 Review of the 2011-2016 plan - How far have we come? 

 

The Property Asset Management function has been a critical element of the redesign of Council 

services in NPTCBC, working closely with Heads of Service on Asset Management groups and 

providing advice and influence in Service property rationalisation programme.  

This has also extended to the transfer of assets to community and third sector groups. The Corporate 

Estates team in conjunction with the relevant client services have continually been involved in the 

delivery of community and third sector solutions for the provision of certain public benefit services 

over the last 20 years.  The majority of these solutions have resulted in the retention of the assets by 

the Authority as community leases have been developed for a number of asset types, e.g. library 

services, sports facilities etc. 

This level of engagement and delivery of key asset management targets has continued through the 

formal approach now taken with the writing and adoption of the 2011-2016 Property Asset 

Management Plan.  

 

The Council has made progress in a number of areas of good practice and has delivered significant 

change to the estate over the previous plan period, as set out below: 

 

OPERATIONAL PORTFOLIO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Most of the office accommodation changes in the last 5 years have been driven by the desire to move 

staff back into Council freehold property. As a consequence the leased Civic Office estate has been 

decanted where feasible and handed back to superior landlords. This has seen the permanent 

relocation of staff from: 

Civic Buildings & Satellite Offices 

Page 39



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

11 

Aberavon House 

 

Britannic House Llandarcy 

 

Units  11-12 Milland Road Industrial Estate 

 

The Court Yard Llandarcy 

 

21 London Road Neath 

 

Unit 30 Aberavon Shopping Centre 

 

97 Llansawel Crescent 

 

73 Windsor Road Neath 

 

89-91 Llansawel Crescent 

 

Unit 1A Milland Road Industrial Estate 

 

 

In addition to a significant decant of the leased estate there have been staff relocations from the 

freehold office estate at the following locations: 

• 32-34 Victoria Gardens 

• Pontardawe One Stop Shop 

 

As a result of on-going operational changes in the Social Services directorate, there will be additional 

and imminent decants in office staff from operational buildings in Pontardawe and Neath in 2017. 

In the main, staff have been re located into the main civic offices at Neath and Port Talbot, and the 

Quays in conjunction with smart working practices which are being adopted by certain teams within 

Directorates with the  support by ICT and Human Resources. 

Office accommodation strategy will continue to be reviewed during the plan period through the 

Corporate Asset Management Group. In particular the 2016-2021 plan will be led by the creation of a 

sub working group of the Corporate Asset Management Group, led by Property and ICT to consider in 

more depth working practices and concepts which will further reduce our need for serviced office 

accommodation, and to improve the working environment for improved productivity and assist with 

staff retention issues. 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

12 

 

 

 

 

 

As a result of recently completed regeneration strategies, there have been a number of changes to 

the car parks portfolio as follows: 

• Harbourside Parkway – additional 111 space Pay and display car park created in conjunction with the 

Network Rail/Port Talbot Parkway Refurbishment. 

• New 600 space multi storey car park developed as part of phase 1 of Neath Town Centre 

redevelopment. 

In addition to the above, following car parks have been created and converted and added to the Pay 

and Display car parks portfolio. 

• Aberavon Sea Front – opening of 2 additional surfaced Pay and Display car parks at Scarlet Avenue 

and Ocean Way. 

• Conversion of 4 existing surfaced car parks into Pay and Display car parks at Bay View, Herbert Street 

upper and lower and the Pontardawe by pass car park. 

 

The future car parking strategy will concentrate on offering customers smarter ways for payment and 

use of the Councils car parks. 

 

 

 

 

 

Car Parks 

Page 41



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

13 

 

 

 

 

There have been significant inroads into the transfer out of community/day/halls and other centres 

under lease arrangements to groups over the years. Historically this asset category has been actively 

managed by Community Councils in Neath and other third sector providers around the County. As a 

result of the further review of community centres over the plan period, 9 more sites have been 

transferred under lease arrangements to third sector organisations. This leaves 2 facilities remaining 

which are directly operated by the Authority at Croeserw and Bryn. 

Consequently this asset category shows that only 6% of the service is directly provided for by the 

Council. It is unlikely that moving forward there will be significant opportunities to further transfer 

service provisions and the property assets in this category. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Councils lease arrangements remain unchanged with NPT Leisure Ltd.  

Since the last report there have been changes in the asset base with the completion of the 

replacement for the Afan Lido, known as Aberafan Leisure and Fitness Centre, which was opened in 

January 2016.  

 

 

 

Community Centres 

Leisure Centres 

Page 42



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Over the plan period concerted efforts have been made to rationalise the portfolio in response to 

changes in service delivery. This has resulted in the following changes to the portfolio: 

Total 17 

• 5 libraries now being run by voluntary/ community groups in non-Council buildings. 

• 1 library currently closed under previous voluntary arrangements, under review to re-open in 

near future. 

• 3 Council owned library functions transferred under lease arrangements to community 

groups. 

• 8 libraries retained and run by Partnerships and Community Developments with some sharing 

of library accommodation with external groups. 

This has therefore seen a reduction of 53% in the operational portfolio as a result of the review with 

library services, whilst retaining the availability of libraries within the County Borough  

 

A link to the current library strategy 2016-2021 is available below: 

Select App 1 - Library Strategy 2016-21 pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Libraries 

Page 43



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

15 

 

 

 

 

As a result of the 21
st

 Century Schools Programme there has been and will continue to be significant 

structural changes to the asset base for education over the next few years. 

As a consequence of the Schools Improvement Programme (SIP), several former school premises 

have become surplus to requirements, to include 7 primary schools and 4 secondary schools.  The 

majority of school assets affected by have been sold or are in the process of being sold on the open 

market to generate capital receipts which have or will be ring fenced to contribute towards the 21
st

 

Century Schools programme.  

However some schools have been reassigned to provide alternative front line services e.g. Tir Morfa, 

which is now an adult education centre. Some other school sites have been retained and form part of 

future strategic redevelopment sites for the next phase of the 21
st

 Century schools programme e.g. 

Traethmelyn Primary School, Sandfields Comprehensive, and Cwrt Sart Comprehensive. 

Glanafan Comprehensive School site has been identified as a Vibrant and Viable Places (VVP) 

opportunity.  VVP is the Welsh Government's regeneration framework, which was launched in March 

2013. The fund focuses on regeneration activity in town centres, with an emphasis on improvement 

to the housing supply. The Authority is negotiating the sale of the site to a local Registered Social 

landlord.  

In the same period the School Improvement Programme achieved the following outcomes: 

• Completion of the first Through School in the County known as Ysgol Bae Baglan. 

• Awel y Mor Primary School, Sandfields. 

• Phase 1 YGG Ystalyfera completed 2016. 

The forward programme of school development will be identified later in the report under the 

2017/18 action plan targets. 

 

Schools 

Page 44



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

16 

 

 

 

 

There has already been a successful transfer of the residential care home service to Gwalia.  A review 

of the Day care services has been completed which has resulted in the following buildings being 

handed back to superior landlords: 

• Ty-Twyn-Teg – room rental only. 

In addition to that the following Council buildings have been declared surplus for re –use or disposal 

on the open market: 

• Trem-Y-Glyn Glyneath. 

• Gelligron, Pontardawe. 

• Bronleigh, Neath. 

• Herbert St, Pontardawe. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Social Services 

Page 45



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

17 

 

 

 

 

As previously reported in the 2011 – 2016 plan, the major review of this asset category has been 

completed, however moving forward further centralisation of these functions will be considered 

during the current plan period.  

 

 

 

 

There has been a significant transfer of responsibility from the Council to community groups for 

sports and community facilities. For the purposes of illustration the pie chart below shows a 

breakdown of leisure assets as classified in the previous AMP.  This includes parks, playing fields, 

pavilions, sports fields, bowling greens, open spaces etc. and those properties managed by Celtic 

Leisure.  

 

14% 

32% 
40% 

14% 

Celtic

Partial Transfer

Full Transfer

Council Retained

Depots & Stores 

Playing Fields, Pavilions, Parks & Open Space 

Page 46



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

18 

Of the 59 assets in this category only 14% are directly managed and controlled by the Authority, with 

the majority of the assets partially or wholly transferred out to external organisations and community 

/ sports groups.  

Of the 32% of assets which have been partially transferred the Authority retains day to day 

management of on average approximately 47% of those sites that make up this category.   

It is important to note that whilst the Council still has responsibility for approximately half of the sites 

in this category, the significant building assets have been leased out to Community groups on full 

repairing and insuring leases, and in the majority of cases all that remains for Council management 

are grounds maintenance matters. 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

% Breakdown of Management Responsibility in the Partial Transfer Category

% Let % Retained

Page 47



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

19 

 

 

 

 

As a result of Welsh Government guidance a Public Convenience Strategy is required to be produced, 

which will be reported before the 31
st

 March 2017. A review of the asset base will be incorporated 

into the strategy and reported at a later date.  In total 3 sites were declared surplus and subsequently 

demolished over the plan period.  

 

 

 

 

 

This group of assets has changed significantly over the plan period with the completion of the £9 

million Gwyn Hall redevelopment in 2012 now managed by Celtic (NPT Leisure Ltd) and the 

restructuring of the lifelong learning provision, which has seen the closure of two facilities and the 

transfer under a lease arrangement of the Taibach lifelong learning centre to a community 

organisation in 2015. 

The transfer of the skills and training unit at Milland Road into what is now called the Tir Morfa 

Centre, which accommodates skills and training, youth services and Adult Community learning is the 

only remaining facility managed by the Authority which would fall under the umbrella of the Lifelong 

Learning badge. 

 

 

 

 

Public Conveniences 

Theatres, Museums, Art Centres & Lifelong Learning Centres 

Page 48



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

20 

 

 

 

 

 

This category of assets contributes significantly to the Councils revenue streams and has over the last 

few years been called upon to deliver more returns. Not only does it provide a revenue stream but it 

also indirectly supports employment in the County and encourages entrepreneurship, supporting the 

Councils strategic and corporate objectives under the Single Integrated Plan and Corporate 

Improvement Plan.  

This asset group is diverse, ranging from commercial and residential ground leases to land and 

building leases of offices, shops etc.  

The number of assets in this asset category is likely to increase, as surplus operational property 

(where it is viable to do so), are marketed to lease as an alternative to immediate sale on the open 

market.  

Notable surplus assets which have been retained to achieve a rental income in the recent past 

include: 

• 36 Forge Road. 

• 131 London Road. 

• 32/34 Victoria Gardens.  

Retaining assets and deriving a rental income supports the Authority in a more positive way in the 

current financial climate.   

This miscellaneous commercial portfolio also includes a relatively new portfolio of retained 

residential garages from the NPT Homes transfer. This sub category contains 386 plots over 39 sites 

across the County. It also includes a sub category of 31 grazing sites.  

 

Commercial, Offices & Markets Portfolio 

Page 49



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

21 

The graph below illustrates the performance of this asset group over the period 2011/12 – 2015/16 

 

 

£0

£200,000

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

£1,000,000

£1,200,000

£1,400,000

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016

Neath Market

Garages

Ground Rents

Others

Offices

Page 50



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

22 

 

 

 

 

This portfolio provides two distinct functions for the Authority: 

• Corporate Objectives :  

Holding this asset group also contributes to key Corporative priorities in the Corporate Improvement 

Plan 2016 – 2019 and the Single Integrated Plan 2013 – 2023. It also ensures that land use is 

protected for continued employment use which is important for future growth and opportunity. 

 

The Council ownership and management of starter industrial units and offices in particular, provides 

significant economic benefits for the County Borough, and provides a catalyst to community 

engagement and development especially in the valley communities by providing the infrastructure 

for economic growth and helping to reduce economic inactivity through business and job creation. 

 

945 direct jobs are provided by businesses occupying the Councils starter unit and offices, with many 

more indirect jobs relying on the contracts from those businesses. 

 

• Income Generation 

The portfolio generates a substantial, dependable annual income for the Authority, in the order of 

£845,000 per annum of which £330,000.00 per annum *2014/15 figures is used to support the 

delivery of service provision within the Environment Directorate. 

An Industrial Starter Unit Performance Report was presented to members in September 2015. A 

further report will be scheduled to be presented during the life of the current AMP. 

 

 

   

Industrial Starter Units 

Page 51



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

23 

The graph below depicts the overall performance in the rental income from this asset category from 

start of the plan period to March 2016: 

 

 

 

£700,000

£750,000

£800,000

£850,000

£900,000

£950,000

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016

£797,320

£898,912

£860,185

£845,027

£934,710

Page 52



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

24 

 

 

 

 

 

The Council has Statutory obligations to provide facilities for the gypsy and traveller community 

under the provisions of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 which places every Council in Wales under a 

Statutory obligation to carry out an accommodation needs assessment in relation to gypsy travellers. 

If unmet need is found the Council is required to identify places for new site provision.  

The Council has 3 sites providing a total of 67 serviced plots: 

• Briton Ferry Site 1 

• Briton Ferry Site 2 

• Caegarw, Margam 

Over the last two and a half years, the Council have put forward bids to secure grant money from the 

Welsh Government for the purposes of enhancing and improving existing facilities in Briton Ferry and 

Caegarw. As a result of the bid process the Council refurbished existing sites and developed an 11 

pitch extension to Caegarw. 

The Authority as a consequence of securing the grants has provided an increase of 11 pitches over 

the plan period 2011-2016, together with refurbishment of facilities on both sites. 

 

 

 

 

The Council has one crematorium based at Margam, which is jointly managed with Bridgend County 

Borough Council. Over the plan period approximately £1.2 million has been spent to renew the 

crematorium equipment and additional work to satisfy current legislation in this area. 

A review of the cemeteries and crematorium estate will be undertaken with Bridgend County Council 

during the plan period. 

Traveller Sites 

Crematoria 

Page 53



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

25 

 

 

 

 

The Councils waste management function incorporates four sites which have remained unchanged 

over the plan period; see below: 

SITES: OPERATORS: 

 

Cymmer Civic Amenities Site 

 

FCC Environment  

Briton Ferry Civic Amenities Site 

 

FCC Environment 

MREC 

 

NPT Recycling Ltd * 

Briton Ferry Land Fill 

 

NPT Waste Management Ltd. 

* Subsidiary of NPT Waste Management Ltd      

The two sites operated by FCC Environment will undergo capital improvements during the reported 

plan period to enable continued delivery of these services. The investment decisions for the 

remaining sites controlled and operated by NPT Waste Management Ltd, will be made by the 

Company. 

The proposed review of the Tregelles Court operations will need to take into account and have regard 

to the waste services operations. 

 

 

 

 

Due to the expiry of a number of Council residential ground leases, (since the reporting of the last 

plan), the Authority now manages a small portfolio of residential properties totalling 4 across the 

County. 

Waste Management 

Residential 

Page 54



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

26 

 

 

 

 

 

Over the plan period there has been a number of regeneration schemes delivered ranging from 

public realm projects to the completion and opening of new build projects. Some of the schemes 

have required the acquisition of assets in order to deliver the projects, however the Council has used 

its property assets to lever regeneration for some years with particular reference to the development 

at Baglan Energy Park and Aberafan seafront. 

A summary of the completed projects are outlined below, together with details of which funding 

programme they have been delivered through: 

 

 

 

Regeneration Assets 

�  NPT—Aberafan Seafront 

 

�  WG—VVP 

 

� Big Lottery   

 

�  WG Strategic Regeneration Area 

 

�  WREN—Landfill Communities Fund 

 

�  WG—Environment Programme 

 

�   Section 106—Planning 

 

�  CADW / NPT 

 

�  WG—TISS & NPT 

 

�  ERDF 

Page 55



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

27 

����  NPT - Aberafan Seafront  

 BOWLING VENUE 

  

Acquisition to enable the development of a new leisure centre. 

 

 SKATEBOARD PARK 

  

Redesign and enhancement of the skateboard park. 

                    

 

����  Welsh Government -  Vibrant & Viable Places (VVP) 

 GREEN PARK 

  

Acquisition of land and leasehold interests to enable the 

redevelopment of the site for 34 social housing units and new 

public open space. 

 

 HARBOURSIDE 

  

Acquisition of land for the construction of a new footpath link 

with the town centre. 

 

 WATER STREET FIRE  STATION 

  

Refurbishment of premises to accommodate NSA Afan 

employability centre.  

 

 

 

����  Big Lottery  

 COSTAL COMMUNITY FUND 

  

Adventure golf course at Aberafan Seafront. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

28 

����  Welsh Government Strategic Regeneration Area – Valleys Regeneration 

 GLYNNEATH 

  

Acquisition of Canal Company land to facilitate a regeneration 

scheme for the town. 

 

 PONTARDAWE 

  

Acquisition of the former Motorworld site to enable a town 

improvement scheme to be undertaken. 

 

 

����  WREN – Landfill Communities Fund 

 SEVEN SISTERS 

  

Cycleway 

 

 HERITAGE 

  

Cefn Coed Colliery – repairs to chimney stack 

 

 

 

����  Welsh Government - Environment Programme 

 BLAENGWYNFI 

  

New bowls club, car park and gardens,  

 

 

 SWANSEA VALLEY 

  

 

• Gateway project – Pontardawe ,Ynysmeudwy, Glanrhyd 

and Ystalyfera 

• Pontardawe Riverside – gardens and car park at leisure 

centre 

• Trebanos –  canal towpath and footpath improvements 

 

 

Page 57



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

29 

 NEATH 

  

Gateway Project, Stockhams Corner - feature and landscaping 

 

 ONLLWYN 

  

Sarn Helen – art work, landscaped feature gateway and footpath 

 

 PONTARDAWE 

  

Cwmdu Glen – replacement of footbridge 

 

 

����  Section 106 - Planning 

 YSTALYFERA 

  

• Public realm improvements and resurfaced car park 

• Footpath improvements, art work and retaining wall 

repairs 

 

 

����  CADW / NPT 

 HERITAGE 

  

• Jersey Park bridges – repairs at Briton Ferry 

• Margam Park 

�        Hen Eglwys – repairs 

�        Chapter House – repairs 

�        Infirmary – repairs 

     

 

 

����  Welsh Government – Tourism Investment Support Scheme  (TISS) & NPT 

 WATERFALLS COUNTRY 

  

Pontneathvaughan - new car park, art work and refurbishment 

of disabled toilets. 

 

 

Page 58



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

30 

����  European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) 

 CONVERGENCE FUND 

  

Public Realm Projects Completed: 

• Station Road Canopy, Port Talbot 

• Neath Parade and Croft Road 

• Croeserw Public real improvements – road works, new 

play area and seating, entrance features, car park 

improvements, fencing and planting. 

 

 GREEN SEAS 

  

Aberafan Seafront: 

• Redesign and enhancement of the sunken garden 

• New toddler’s play area and picnic area 

• New promenade signage and beach shelter 

 

 

Where the Authority cannot access certain funding streams to deliver regeneration schemes, the 

regeneration team work closely with community and third sector organisations, sign posting grant 

opportunities and assisting them in accessing these funds. The Authority has supported the 

Community in the delivery of a number of projects over the plan period.  

The Authority has also assisted groups in the access of funds to undertake a range of physical 

regeneration projects on third party land and building assets across the County during the plan 

period. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This section of the portfolio consists of land and buildings which are not currently identified in the 

forward programme of disposals. In the majority of cases this will be due to complex issues that will 

be required to be overcome to realise development potential and best value e.g. Statutory 

Surplus Assets Not for Sale 

Page 59



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

31 

constraints, such as flood zone classification, biodiversity legislation etc. These sites are reviewed 

annually as part of the forward programme of disposals, and where resources support more detailed 

investigation; these sites are brought forward for consideration. 

 

SURPLUS ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

 

In accordance with its forward disposals programme, the Council is tasked with the orderly disposal 

of its surplus buildings and land. It is important that this is done without compromising the Council’s 

statutory  responsibilities to obtain best value for its assets. 

The total Capital Receipts generated by the disposal of the Councils surplus Assets during the last 

plan period is illustrated below: 

 

 

 

Despite the difficult property market, the Council has continued to successfully dispose of a number 

of surplus properties, whilst ensuring that it also maximises returns. For example, in 2016/17, the 

Council is on target to achieve over a £1 million in capital receipts and has in place a further £2 

million of agreed sales that are likely to complete in the next two financial years. It is considered that 

the Council’s target of achieving capital receipts of £3 million over a 3 year period will be realised. 

 

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016

A
m

o
u

n
t 

£

Financial Year

Capital Receipts Achieved 2011-2016

Page 60



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

32 

 

The Portfolio Revisited – How has it changed since the last plan? 

 

The portfolio has changed significantly since the last plan period. The changes have come about for a 

variety of reasons as set out below: 

1. Data capture of property assets and reporting of additional asset categories:  

Since the last plan the number of assets recorded in the database has been revisited. In some cases 

omitted categories have now been listed for completeness and those properties that sat under the 

2011 category headings have now been reviewed and updated. As a result in some categories the 

numbers reported have increased, through the redefining of those assets. 

2. Property rationalisation 

 

The majority of rationalisation has come about as a result of the closure of schools as part of the 

School Improvement Programme, the rationalisation of office accommodation and the restructuring 

of elderly care in the County.   

 

 

3. Transfer of assets to the community.  

 

Whilst the Council continues to retain a significant portfolio, a significant portion of it is leased out to 

the third sector and community organisations refer to page 10 “Review of the 2011-2016 Plan - how 

far we have come”. 

 

4. Retention of surplus assets and acquisition of assets – Regeneration and Commercial categories 

As part of a developing Asset Management Strategy, it is considered the Authority should explore 

genuine commercial opportunities to secure commercial tenants from the vacant and surplus 

operational estate BEFORE attempts are made to dispose of the assets to achieve the best capital 

receipt.  

The decision to do this is multifaceted, and has been influenced in part by the challenging market 

conditions and a strong commitment not to dispose “at all costs”.   

Page 61



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

33 

As long as the cost of holding vacant and surplus property is not significant, the strategy to “rent 

first” is currently the preferred option, if it makes commercial sense to do so. Not only does this 

strategy provide the Council with the potential to offer additional rental income to the rent roll, but 

also provides socio economic benefits, providing business opportunities for new and established 

companies to develop job opportunities and training in our communities.   

As a consequence there is likely to be a trend towards reclassification of operational properties into 

the Commercial portfolio to meet the ever increasing financial demands on revenue budgets. 

 

The chart below shows a full breakdown of the property types, within the Councils portfolio, and 

where relevant, the 2016 figures in each property type are compared against the reported 2011 

figures in those categories. 

 

 

 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Regeneration

Surplus Assets Not For Sale

Assets Held For Sale

Libraries

Community/Day Centres & Halls

Public Conveniences

Crematoria & Cemeteries

Gypsy Sites

Pay & Display Car Parks

Waste Management & Civic Amenities

Grazing

Residential

Garages

***Leisure Properties

Schools

Industrial Starter Units

* Commercial Premises

Social Services inc Residential Homes

Administrative Buildings

Reported Number of Properties

(2011)

Number of Properties (2016)

** Total number of assets: 

951 (2016) 

* Includes Baglan Bay Innovation Centre 

**Excludes undeveloped land category 

***Includes playing fields, pavilions, parks open space 

Page 62



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

34 

The value of the portfolio described below is relatively low. The phrase “Property Portfolio” in this 

document refers to all Council land and buildings, although it excludes, highway and other assets. 

The Council’s land and buildings have a current asset value of £402 million in the 2016 Statement of 

Accounts. It should be noted that this value does not represent the Market Value of all the assets, as 

operational assets are valued using specialised methods of valuation. 

PPE Assets 

(Property Plan & Equipment) 

 

Gross Book Value Per Fixed Asset Register As At 1/4/16                    £ 

Land & Buildings 382,959,551.00  

Surplus Assets 11,809,409.00  

Assets Held For Sale 7,282,100.00 

TOTAL *402,051,060.00  

  

*This figure excludes assets under construction, community assets, vehicles plant and equipment and 

infrastructure assets 

The tables below, report the downward trend in all the running costs/maintenance categories within 

the identified years in the tables.  

TOTAL ANNUAL RUNNING COST 2009-2010 2015-2016 

Land & Buildings: £22,935,000       £19,992,819 

 

 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE SPEND 2009-2010 2015-2016 

Capital Maintenance: £3,545,000 £1,608,245 

Revenue Maintenance: £2,224,623 £1,506,975 

 

 

TOTAL MAINTENANCE BACKLOG 2009-2010 2015-2016 

Buildings: £151,350,000 £132,600,000 

Page 63



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

35 

The total maintenance backlog  figure will change as information is updated from the rolling 

programme of condition surveys undertaken across the Council’s property portfolio, and also as 

properties have works undertaken, are disposed of, or alternatively new assets are acquired.  

 

The breakdown using the bar chart below, shows the movement in the backlog between plan periods 

in what are now two main categories; (formerly reported as three categories) 

• Education 

• All Other Buildings 

 

 

 

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

140.0

Backlog as at 31st March 2010 Backlog as at 31st March 2016

C
o

st
 £

 M
il

li
o

n
s

Education

Other

Page 64



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

36 

The following chart shows the Capital Programme spends on Land and Buildings over the plan period 

2011-2016.  

 

 

This is out of a total capital programme of: 

   

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16

C
o

st
 £

 m
il

li
o

n
s

Education, Leisure And

Lifelong Learning

Environment

(exc.Highways)

Social Services

Policy and Resources

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16

C
o

st
 £

 M
il

li
o

n
s

Financial Years

Page 65



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

37 

The Councils Corporate Improvement Objectives 

 

The Context for Property Planning 

Before describing the Councils Property Objectives and Property Strategy, it is important to set out 

the overall corporate context from which these have been derived. 

The Single Integrated Plan (SIP) and the Corporate Improvement Plan (CIP) set out the overall vision 

for NPTCBC and are central to the way in which the Council’s services, and those of its partners, are 

delivered.  

The SIP currently contains five broad long term partnership initiatives/outcomes and four cross 

cutting priorities. The Council’s Corporate Improvement plan contains six improvement objectives… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                         

Single Integrated Plan 

 (Long Term Outcomes) 

• Healthy 

• Feel Safe & are Safe 

• Communities & Environment are sustainable 

• Strong & prosperous economy, leading to reduced poverty 

• Fulfil their learning potential 

  

Cross Cutting Priorities 

 

• Children & Young People 

• Anti-poverty 

• Health & Inequities 

• Transport 

  

Page 66



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

38 

Corporate Improvement Plan  

The Council’s Corporate Improvement plan contains six improvement objectives: 

 

 

The Council recognises that property is a critical component in delivering the vision of the Corporate 

Improvement Plan and the Single Integrated Plan.  

 

The Asset Management Plan links to, feeds off, and reacts to these Corporate plans and a range of   

other strategies, initiatives and plans which may change during the plan period as a result of the 

legislation e.g. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The visual overleaf shows how the 

Asset Management Plan is informed by and links into the Corporate Improvement Plan, Single 

Integrated Plan and other key strategies, programmes and plans.  

Page 67



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

39 

 

 

 

 

Forward 

    Financial 

           Plan 

 Single 

Integrated 

Plan 

 

Business 

Plans 

 

Workforce 

Strategy 

 

Capital 

Programme 

 

Energy 

Management 

Strategy 

 

Partnership 

Working 

 

Corporate 

Improvement 

Plan 

 

ICT 

Strategy 

 
Corporate 

Asset 

Management 

Plan 

 

Page 68



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

40 

The main strategic property challenges that face the Council have not significantly changed since the 

last plan:  

• Continuing financial pressures requiring the Council to make efficiencies year on year. These will 

continue to impact on the Council’s property portfolio, both on the operational and non-operational 

sections of the Portfolio. 

• Continue to deliver the objectives of the Schools Improvement Programme. 

• Delivery of ongoing regeneration of town centres and coastal areas, fostering economic regeneration 

and attracting inward public and private investment. 

• Continue to support urban improvement. 

• Continue to improve office efficiency and working conditions for staff to enable them to be more 

productive in delivering the Council’s services. 

• Whilst there has been improvement in the Council’s maintenance backlog and “sweating property 

assets”, further improvements are required which will be measured annually in the property 

performance reports. 

• Continue to improve environmental performance (Energy /Carbon) through implementing the 

actions of the Energy Performance Report 2017. 

• To support and provide assistance to the community groups that have entered into community leases 

over the past three years and continue to find opportunities to work collaboratively with these 

groups and other partner agencies/authorities.  

 

 

New Legislative Requirements 

 

As already touched upon, the AMP may change during the planning period. The most significant piece 

of legislation which will shape and influence all Council plans and objectives, to include the AMP in 

the next few years is The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  

 

Page 69



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

41 

The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (2
nd

 May 2015 Edition) 

The Act is about improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, 

now and in the future. There are 7 goals that all public bodies must work towards- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Well-being Goals 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the Welsh language, 

and which encourages people to participate in the arts, and sports and 

recreation. 

A nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, 

environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing 

such a thing may make a positive contribution to global well-being. 

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises the limits of 

the global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and 

proportionately (including acting on climate change); and which develops a skilled 

and well-educated population in an economy which generates wealth and 

provides employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the 

wealth generated through securing decent work. 

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with 

healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological 

resilience and the capacity to adapt to change (for example climate change). 

A society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in 

which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood. 

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their 

background or circumstances (including their socio economic background and 

circumstances). 

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities. 

A prosperous 

Wales 

A resilient  

Wales 

A healthier 

Wales 

A more equal 

Wales 

A Wales of 

cohesive 

communities 

A Wales of 

vibrant culture 

and thriving 

Welsh language 

A globally 

responsible 

Wales Page 70



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

42 

To do this, there are 5 criteria that public bodies need to think about to show that they have applied 

the principle. These consist of:  

 

 

 

 

The Act requires the 44 public bodies to set wellbeing objectives that are designed to maximise their 

contribution to each of the wellbeing goals. During 2017, the Council will be undertaking a 

programme of work to assure it discharges its statutory duties contained within this Act. This 

programme of work will involve the development of the wellbeing objectives which will influence 

how we develop and deliver the property service in the future. 

PREVENTION Page 71



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

43 

ICT & Property Strategy 

The Council has aligned its ICT and Property Strategies to ensure that it achieves maximum 

efficiencies and benefits from all its assets.  

The flexible working programme continues to enable more staff to share workstations, work from 

home or out in the communities to not only improve the efficiency and quality of service delivery but 

also to enable the Council to identify and dispose of surplus property assets.   

Changing Customer preference in the way they seek to interact with the Council is also a key 

consideration of the Council’s ICT Strategy.  An increased demand for mobile and fixed internet 

delivered services and customary telephone transactions is likely to reduce the requirement for 

facilities within buildings for ‘face to face’ contact and services are adapting accordingly.  

The challenge in ICT terms is trying to be sufficiently flexible to be able to react to the constant 

changes in the ways our services are expected to be delivered and also the different usages to which 

our property is subject.  All of which has to be installed in a secure manner, one that protects 

information and staff. 

 

The Council’s Human Resource Strategy 

As a consequence of the difficult financial position that has faced the Council; the Council has 

reduced the workforce by over 2,500 employees over the last 5 year period.  This included the 

transfer of circa 1,500 employees to NPT Homes and Grwp Gwalia.    

 The Council’s Human Resource’s Strategy will continue to be influenced by the Council’s Forward 

Financial Plan, as well as by the Council’s Digital Strategy and the requirement to reduce head counts, 

reorganise staffing structures and / or the way in which work is delivered and / or organised.  This in 

turn will affect requirements for property and accommodation – either reducing the requirement for 

accommodation, or requiring movements of staff and / or changes to existing accommodation linked 

to changes to the way in which services are delivered and work organised.   

 

The Council’s Financial Strategy 

The Council still expects to have to make considerable reductions in its budget for the foreseeable 

future whilst continuing to provide public services to the highest possible standards. The savings 

Page 72



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

44 

required for the four year period 2017-18 to 2020-21 are currently estimated to be £38 million. To 

achieve this, the Council will continue to strive to be even more efficient and effective in the way it 

provides its services in the future and this includes the way it uses its various assets including 

property. 

 

Implications for Property 

Property will need to continue to play its full part in both meeting the Council’s public service 

aspirations and also doing this in the context of the financial challenges that it faces.  This is a major 

challenge.  A property response will be required in some or all of the following areas: 

Regeneration 

• Continuing to use the Council’s property assets to foster regeneration;  

 

Customer Service 

To continue to support the business plans of service areas to challenge and discuss how property 

works for them in their front line delivery, through the implementation of: 

• Annual Property Management Plans – The Strategic Asset Management section in conjunction with 

Corporate Strategy and Democratic Services has developed a template which has been inserted into 

the Heads of Service Annual Business plans to gather the property challenges and needs for each 

service area. 

 

 This allows more effective engagement with the Service areas on current property related needs 

and challenges. These property challenges will be incorporated into the Annual Property 

Performance Action Plan. 

 

• To develop relationships with partners to provide multi use buildings. e.g. Mid and West Wales 

Fire Authority, South Wales Police Authority etc. 

 

• To continue to support the Council’s drive to improve customer access channels, through a review 

of the Council’s First Stop Shop services. 

 

Page 73



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

45 

Communities 

• To continue to explore opportunities for the transfer of assets to the community where 

appropriate and support those organisations to sustain the transfer of services.  

• To continue to support the empowerment of local communities by developing community asset 

sharing in appropriate cases. 

• Supporting local communities by providing local services in partnership with those communities 

and addressing the property implications of this. 

 

Efficiency 

• To continue to improve the utilisation of civic accommodation, whilst at the same time sustaining 

improvements in working conditions.  This will include mobile and flexible working. 

• To continue to address maintenance backlog issues. 

• To deliver the action plan of the Energy Performance Report.  

• To set up a collaborative working group with partners to investigate new opportunities for the 

sharing or hosting of the shared service agenda. 

• Supporting the Council in addressing the challenges of waste management.  

• Maximising the efficiency of the Council’s assets by continuing to carry out service reviews. 

• Project Management and Procurement – to continue to reduce the capital costs of construction by 

identifying the most appropriate and cost effective method of procurement. 

 

 

Risk 

Condition of the Operational Portfolio 

In relation to the operational estate which is used to deliver critical public services, the condition of 

these buildings has improved over the last plan period. A detailed look at the portfolio for 15/16 is 

available to view in the annual Property Performance Report reported in January 2017. 

 

In summary the 2015/16 figures in the Property Performance Report show a significant increase in 

Category A and B buildings, a drop in the number of buildings in Category C and a slight increase in 

Category D buildings over the period.  

Page 74



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

46 

The general improvement in the figures is a result of several factors, including the closure of a range 

of buildings in poor condition and the construction of several new buildings. Several Category D 

buildings will be removed from the portfolio as they are replaced under the School Improvement 

Programme. 

The risks, which are identified in the rolling programme of building surveys, and subsequently in the 

Annual Property Performance Report, form a critical part of the decision making process in the on-

going  Service Asset Management Plans and Area Reviews. By doing so, it will inform and drive the 

Council’s Capital Programme. 

The Council’s continued aim is to have proposals to vacate or refurbish all category D properties 

within five years. It is acknowledged, however, that some of those properties at the lower end of 

category C may also require considerable investment. 

 

Community Asset Transfer – Transferred Operational Estate 

As already reported, the last 5 years has seen a substantial transfer of assets to the third sector and 

community groups. This work is on-going as reported in the recent Property Performance Report. 

However we must recognise that there will be a requirement to manage and closely review the 

community leases that have been set up to transfer these assets. The terms of the leases are very 

tenant friendly to provide the flexibility to these groups to terminate occupation for any reason. 

Consequently, there will be a need to continue to support and assist these groups, to avoid the risk of 

groups handing back leases and presenting further challenges to the Authority. 

Capital Receipt Targets 

 

To achieve best value for our forward disposals programme, sites and buildings will require significant 

professional resource to achieve the best and most valuable uses to attract developers. Without this 

preparation before sale it is likely to impact negatively on capital receipts. Accordingly it is critical to 

support professional resources in this area. 

 

In addition, where surplus sites or buildings are seen as an opportunity to deliver or be the driver of 

regeneration, the imposition of the Councils aspirations can and will impact on the capital receipt 

achievable, demand and timing of the disposal.  In most cases a disposal with community benefit 

style conditions via a procurement led disposal process can lead to reduced capital receipts. 

 

Page 75



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

47 

Regeneration – Future of European Funding Post Brexit 

With the uncertainty over the relationship between the UK, Wales and the European Union in the 

next few years, the Council needs to consider the availability and source of alternative grants, as we 

strive towards the delivery of new physical regeneration projects in the future. 

WEFO are continuing to deliver EU funding programmes in Wales.  Applications for EU funds are still 

being developed and approved in line with objectives agreed by the European Commission. 

The UK Treasury will provide a full lifetime guarantee for all structural and investment projects 

approved before the UK leaves the EU. 

 

The strategies, legislation and plans and the implication for property for the Council provide a 

direction of travel for the AMP framework. A distilled 1 page summary is outlined overleaf: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 76



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

48 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N
P

T
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 A

ss
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

-2
0

2
1

 

…..and our Action Plan 

• ASSET MANAGEMENT DATA DEVELOPMENT & PERFORMANCE: TPMS review & development – ICT & Property  & Property Performance review 2017 

• ACCOMMODATION: Corporate Agile Working review - ICT & Property, continue to progress the accommodation strategy. The ongoing remodeling of various services requires the continual review 

our building stock and staffing levels within, to ensure that we make the most economic use of these assets & Crematoria review. 

• CAPITAL PROJECTS: Deliver current phase of the School Improvement Programme 

• REGENERATION: Produce a Regeneration Plan 

• COMMUNITY/NEIGHBOURHOOD: Community Transfer Support Framework: Develop a framework for managing the assets already transferred to community groups to include monitoring. 

Community Asset Transfer: Continue to support the AMP and FFP in delivering where achievable further transfer of assets to the community & draft & adopt a Community Asset Transfer policy for 

the Council. Neighbourhood Reviews: To develop and implement a programme of neighbourhood reviews throughout the county for Pontardawe, Afan Valley, Swansea Valley, Amman Valley, Port 

Talbot Waterfront, Vale of Neath & Dulais Valley. 

• ENERGY/CARBON: Implement the action plan of the 2017 Energy Performance Report. 

• COLLABORATIVE: Set up and develop collaborative working group with external Authorities and Organisations. Asset Management: continue through National Assets Working Group, e-PIMS, CLAW 

& ACES. 

• COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL/INVESTMENT: Deliver second Industrial Property Performance Report. Through representation on the Councils Income Generation Working Group, to consider and 

discuss the opportunities of the Council acquiring and managing a property investment portfolio. 

• FORWARD DISPOSALS PROGRAMME: Continue to work towards the generation of £3m of Capital Receipts by 2020. 

• FORWARD FINANCIAL PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS: To continue to identify and realise savings under the FFP. 

…..and our Action Plan 

and from our Business Objectives via the Corporate Improvement Priorities and Property Objectives we can set out our Property Asset Strategy  

 

Themes: 

1). Improving the quality and reducing the size of the property portfolio 

2). Improving the customer experience 

3). Improving the way we work 

4). Improving our performance in climate change / energy / carbon 

5). Improving the efficiency & effectiveness by co-location, capital spending prioritisation, better performance management, releasing capital, running costs reductions, improving maintenance 

6). To expand and challenge the existing commercial estate and discuss the opportunities of acquiring investment properties as part of the Council’s  Financial resilience strategy 

 

Property Categories: 

Operational Portfolio 

• Civic Buildings & Satellite Offices – to continue to consolidate office activities through service reviews & ICT strategies. 

• Car Parks – review of smarter payment methods 

• Community Centres – limited future opportunities for further asset transfer. Council to collaborate with new community operators to develop sustainable services 

• Leisure Centres – to continue to work in partnership with Celtic Leisure 

• Libraries – community asset transfer currently maximised. Council to collaborate with new community operators to develop sustainable services 

• Schools – to continue delivery of the Schools Improvement Programme 

• Social Services – to complete day care services review and review future office requirements 

• Depots & Stores – review of Tregelles Court  Operations 

• Playing fields, Pavillions, Parks & Open space – to provide support to the new community groups in the recent CAT programme 

• Public Conveniences – to undertake review of the asset base in 2017 

• Theatres, Museums, Art Centres & Lifelong Learning Centres – Ongoing review against customer expectations 

• Commercial, Residential, Concessions & Markets Portfolio – to continue to challenge the portfolio, to increase returns whilst continuing to support SME’s 

• Industrial Starter Units & Offices – Produce second performance report 

• Traveller Sites – To continue to effectively manage the Council’s statutory obligations in this area 

• Crematoria – review to be undertaken in 2017/18 

• Waste Management – Proposed capital improvements to the Councils two waste recycling facilities 

• Residential – review ongoing ownership and management. 

• Surplus Assets not for sale – to review opportunities to move assets in this category to assets held for sale 

• Regeneration Assets – Develop a Regeneration Plan to link in with the AMP 

 

Assets held for sale – To achieve  ongoing annual capital receipt targets 

 

Investment Property – To explore the acquisition of investment assets as part of the Council’s financial resilience strategy. 
 

and from our Business Objectives via the Corporate Improvement Priorities and Property Objectives we can set out our Property Asset Strategy 

Our overall Business Objectives via the Corporate Improvement Priorities drive 

our property decision making….. 

• Safer brighter futures – better outcomes for children and young people 

• Better Schools Brighter prospects- Strategic school Improvement Programme 

• Improving outcomes, improving lives – promoting high quality responsive, citizen 

centred social care 

• Prosperity for all- promoting economic growth 

• Reduce reuse and recycle – towards zero waste 

• Digital by Choice – Improving customer experience making better use of public money 

And of particular relevance to property: 

• Flexible working and better office utilisation 

• Tight human resource planning 

• On-going annual budget reductions 

Our overall Business Objectives via the Corporate Improvement Priorities drive 

our property decision making….. 

…..and our Desired Outcomes 

In the next year to have: 

1). Completed ICT review of TPMS 

2). To set up Corporate Working Group & develop strategy for Agile Working for future implementation. 

3). Via the Council’s Income Generation Working Group discuss & further report opportunities for investment property acquisition. 

4). Delivered a Regeneration Plan linking to the AMP. 

5). To have completed the first phase of neighbourhood reviews. 

6). Delivered and supported the next phase of the School Improvement Programme  

…..and our Desired Outcomes 

This allows us to define our Property Objectives 

 

1). To have a well-planned portfolio. 

2). To have a “lean” property portfolio. 

3). To have a property portfolio driven by community and service requirements, in the context 

of our financial objectives. 

4).To ensure that our property portfolio is both financially and environmentally sustainable. 

5). To provide a safe, secure and productive portfolio. 

6). To expand and challenge the existing commercial estate and discuss the opportunities of 

acquiring investment properties as part of the Council’s Financial resilience strategy. 

This allows us to define our Property Objectives 

Page 77



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

49 

Property Objectives - Review 

 

As noted above, achieving our core business drivers will have property implications. In most cases, 

the Council’s fundamental objectives cannot be achieved without suitable accommodation and 

property to support the range of services that it provides. The Council will not however make any 

unwarranted assumptions about its asset base, and will continue to review and challenge its portfolio 

to ensure that it assists the Council’s objectives in the most efficient way possible. A critical element 

of this challenge will be to establish whether property ownership is critical to service delivery and if 

not to look at possible alternatives. 

 

The definition of specific property objectives derived from the Council’s business drivers, is key to this 

process, and provides a basis for measuring the performance of property and for guiding property-

related decisions in the future. 

 

The Council’s Property Objectives 

There are six headline Property objectives:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Objective 1 

To have a well 

planned Portfolio 

To anticipate future property needs of the Council by effective forward planning of 

services and the corporate need for property and accommodation (because of the long 

lead in times needed for property change). 

To ensure that all of our core asset resources (property, ICT, human resources and 

finance) work in harmony in an efficient and effective manner 

To recognise the opportunities to lever benefits and share risk, through strategic 

partnering with other public and private sector partners, and through co-location of 

public service provision. 

To monitor the performance of our portfolio by measuring our progress in terms of the 

Council Core Objectives and its business drivers, as well as standard property 

performance measures. 

Page 78



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Objective 2 

To have a “lean” 

Property Portfolio 

 

 

 

To recognise that property ownership is not always essential to service delivery and to 

justify fully the continued ownership of all property no matter what its use, and to 

release property immediately if its retention is not justified. To continue to improve the 

property information data that informs decision making through identifying resource to 

develop TPMS 

To ensure that our property reinforces the Council’s objectives to empower and 

regenerate local communities. 

To continue to provide support to those community groups we have successfully 

empowered to manage and operate Council functions in the education and 

environment service areas e.g. libraries, sports playing fields pavilions etc.  

To ensure that our portfolio reinforces our reputation as a joined up, efficient and 

effective customer focused public service provider. 

Objective 3 

To have a property portfolio  

driven by community and  

service requirements, in the 

  context of our financial  

objectives. 

 

To continue to ensure that our asset portfolio meets the Council’s financial objectives, 

that underperforming capital is released from our portfolio and that the Council’s 

burden of property liabilities is reduced. 

To achieve value for money and efficiency in every aspect of property running costs 

and procurement of property (including construction) and property services. 

To use our property in an environmentally sustainable and friendly manner. Whenever 

we construct new assets, or improve or extend existing assets, to embody sustainability 

principles in the location, design and construction. 

Objective 4 

To ensure that our property  

portfolio is both financially 

and environmentally 

sustainable. 

Page 79



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

51 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

How Will We Measure Our Success? 

We recognise that we cannot achieve all our objectives at the same time and that we must ensure 

that the Council’s shorter term priorities are delivered. 

The Council continues to develop its approach to managing the performance of its property assets. 

Traditionally, this has been achieved by the use of Performance Indicators that are ‘benchmarked’ via 

the Consortium of Local Authorities in Wales (CLAW) and the Wales Data Unit.  

 

 

To ensure that our property is in good condition, and compliant with all relevant 

statutory requirements and safety standards. 

To ensure that we provide a good environment for our staff which matches our 

requirement for effective work styles supports our objective of high productivity, and 

which encourages recruitment, retention and motivation 

Objective 5 

To provide a safe, 

secure and 

 productive portfolio. 

To recognise the contribution that is made in revenue terms to Council services by the 

indirect operational portfolio and the non-operational commercial estate managed by 

the Corporate Estates team, and to continue to review opportunities to increase the 

estate rental income while continuing to balance the socio economic benefits of being 

a public sector landlord. 

To imbed into the asset management process  an assessment of all new surplus assets 

before disposal  to establish whether the asset  is fit for retention for commercial  

leasing and transfer into the Commercial estate. 

Through representation on the Councils Income Generation Working Group, to 

consider and discuss the opportunities of the Council acquiring and managing a 

property investment portfolio.   

Objective 6 
To expand and challenge the 

existing commercial estate and 

discuss the opportunities of 

acquiring investment properties 

as part of the Council’s financial 

resilience policy 

Page 80



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

52 

In addition to monitoring the achievement of the Strategic objectives, a suite of performance 

measures has been developed to enable the operational performance of the management of facilities 

to be monitored and reported and to drive further continuous improvement. The data will be set out 

in the established Annual Property Performance Report format that has been and will continue to be 

reported to the relevant Cabinet Board. 

As a summary the Annual Property Performance Reports include: 

• The Performance Indicators for Asset Management that are submitted on an all-Wales basis. 

• Property Performance information on each asset categories. 

• An Action Plan update. 

• New pressures/legislation that may impact on the portfolio. 

• Property & Regeneration achievements during the past year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

53 

 

 Asset Strategy – Has it Changed? 

The Councils Asset Strategy continues to adopt the established themes and objectives set out in the 

previous plan. As with every reincarnation there will be new challenges and ideas to consider, 

however the guiding principles remain the same. 

Previous sections of this document have set a framework for the consideration of our property and 

accommodation requirements – our business drivers and our specific objectives which guide the 

management of our portfolio. 

The aim of this section is to once again confirm the ‘direction of travel’ for the Council, to ensure that 

we continue meet our objectives of having a planned portfolio. The strategy is divided into a number 

of guiding principles called “Themes”, each of which is reaffirmed below. Consideration is given first 

to some over-arching themes, and then to individual categories of the portfolio. 

 

Themes 

Whilst some of the themes overlap in their scope, they are identified separately below to show the 

main elements of our overall property strategy: 

 

Theme 1 Improving the quality and reducing the size of the Operational 

Property Portfolio 

In the face of continued pressures on both capital and revenue budgets, there will be continued pressures to reduce the 

size of the operational portfolio. Reduction should not and does not necessarily mean the disposal of assets but in some 

cases will mean retained ownership and the transfer of services (in the case of front line uses), to Community groups 

etc. in the form of community leases and in relation to office accommodation, in some cases exhausting opportunities to 

offer partnering / sharing opportunities with partner organisations and or re categorising surplus assets into the 

commercial portfolio to generate additional revenue income. The operational portfolio has reduced over the plan 

period. This has been due to significant efforts to decant from leasehold office accommodation and accommodate office 

based staff within the freehold operational estate. The success of the transfer of operational buildings and sites namely 

in the operational areas of libraries , community centres and the parks and outdoor leisure categories has been 

instrumental in the reduction of many day to day obligations.  

 

Theme 2 

 

Improving Customer Experience 

Where we are satisfied that property is a necessary component of service delivery, we will: 

• Continue to improve the customer experience and customer access to services in Council property, whether it be 

for visitors, users or residents through review and consultation. 

• Continue to achieve more intensive use out of our property which should, in part, allow us to release properties 

which are no longer needed, whilst still maintaining services.  Where they arise, we will take opportunities to, 

extend the use of our properties (e.g. schools, libraries), and co-locate Council services uses, as well as co-locate 

Page 82



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

54 

with services provided by other public sector providers (e.g. health and police).  In appropriate cases, this will 

include co-location with third sector providers and possibly the private sector. 

 

Theme 3 

 

Improving the Way We Work 

Workstyle – Linked to Theme 1 to improve space utilisation, through better space planning, and increase flexibility.  Our 

objective is to continue to maximise the opportunity to locate the majority of our office workers in  the main Civic office 

locations at The Quays, Neath, Pontardawe and Port Talbot, to capitalise on the good working environment that these 

buildings provide.  To do this, the Council will continue to both improve on the utilisation of desks and to promote more 

flexible methods of working, including remote and home working that improve efficiency and enhance service delivery.  

In some cases it may be that staff will not need desks in Council offices at all.   In this way we will reduce the Council’s 

office floor space and reduce running costs by vacating old and obsolete office buildings. To make sure that we continue 

to use our space efficiently and effectively we will rigorously monitor space utilisation within our office buildings. This 

approach will be flexible enough to allow for some variation (if justified) but will provide a framework for future office 

planning decisions. 

 

Theme 4 

 

Climate Change / Energy / Carbon 

The continued drive to reduce both the consumption of energy and water resources, and the Council’s carbon emissions 

will be achieved by: 

• Reducing the number of buildings, and overall floor space, from which the Council operates by improving space 

utilisation and building efficiency. 

• Making the remaining building stock as energy efficient as possible. 

• Ensuring that ‘environmental and sustainable design’ is a key consideration in all new build projects. 

• Investigate and assess commercial opportunities for energy related schemes across the County to derive socio 

economic and commercial returns. e.g. District Heating 

 

Theme 5 

 

Efficiency & Effectiveness 

Co-location – The desire of the Council to seek opportunities for Co-location with public and third sector partners as well 

as possibly the private sector has already been mentioned above under the heading “Improving the Customer 

Experience”.  Co-location will also have the benefit of more efficient use of capital and revenue expenditure through 

more efficient construction costs and running costs. 

Capital spending prioritisation - All capital spending proposals are vetted by the Capital Programme Steering Group 

which contributes to the formulation of the Council’s capital programme which is included in the Five Year Financial 

Plan.  There is a framework for project assessment currently being introduced (Programme Project Management) and 

this will be developed over the next few years to ensure that there is a standard assessment methodology for major 

projects including consideration of whole life costing. 

Performance Management – The Council currently uses performance measures which are specific to property efficiency 

and effectiveness, which are reported in the Annual Property Performance Reports.  These measures have the benefit of 

being used by other Local Authorities in Wales and enable us to benchmark ourselves with them.  In the future our 

performance measures will also be directly associated with the Council’s drive for lean systems and transforming the 

way it delivers each of its services. The Council will also look to develop Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) for the 

commercial estate. The measurement of performance in all its guises will require continual improvement of the 

reporting options which inform the performance measurement. The Council’s condition and building survey information 

will need to keep up with the demand of performance measurement. 

Capital release and running cost reductions - Wherever feasible we will seek to rationalise the property portfolio to 

make it more efficient and effective and to release surplus property.  This will allow us to release capital in the cases 

Page 83



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

55 

where surplus property can in sold in the market and it will also allow us to reduce our running costs. 

Maintenance –The Council has a current maintenance backlog of some £132.6m which is down 12.5% on the reported 

backlog figure back in 2009/10.  The Council will strive to ensure that this figure does not increase in real terms and it 

will seek to reduce this over the next five years by vacating and if necessary replacing old outworn buildings.  

 

Theme 6 

 

Commercial Outlook 

Linked to key objective 6, to continually review the non- operational and surplus portfolio and continue to maximise the 

commercial opportunities of the estate, whilst considering new opportunities of developing and investment property 

portfolio. 

 

 

Regeneration 

Whilst Regeneration is not a stand-alone theme, it is a significant area worthy of separate reference 

within this section of the report.  

As part of its approach to the regeneration of the County Borough, the Council has used its property 

assets to facilitate and deliver regeneration projects and to lever in funding from external sources. 

The Council has achieved considerable success in securing external funding to deliver major 

regeneration programmes and projects to the benefit of the residents of the County Borough. The 

following regeneration plans have been used as a framework for intervention: 

• Neath Integrated Territorial Strategy 

• Port Talbot Integrated Territorial Strategy 

• Waterfront Regeneration Strategy 

• VVP Programme Strategy 

• Destination Management Plan 

• Aberafan Seafront Plan 

• Community Regeneration Strategies e.g.: Glynneath and Pontardawe 

On the basis of these policy frameworks, significant regeneration investment is being made in the 

following areas: 

• Port Talbot Harbourside – Infrastructure improvements to potential employment sites. Promotion of 

private sector led investments. 

 

• Port Talbot Town Centre – Housing, transportation, commercial, employability and public realm 

projects under Vibrant and Viable Places Programme. 

Page 84



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

56 

• Neath Town Centre – Commercial led mixed use development of the town centre. Improvements of 

key buildings in the town centre. 

 

• Aberafan Seafront – Housing, public realm and leisure related investments to promote the Seafront 

as a place to live and visit. 

 

• Valley Communities – Public realm and community projects within valley communities. 

Current economic conditions, the constraints on local government funding and the reduction in the 

availability of capital grants will make the delivery of regeneration projects more challenging in the 

future. The Council is therefore looking to become more innovative in their approach through 

delivering projects in partnership with other organisations and through the use of alternative forms 

of funding e.g.: loan funding. The Council will continue to maximise the use of its land and premises 

assets in achieving its regeneration goals and in levering additional finance. The Council will also seek 

to take advantage of ‘opportunity purchases’ at favourable values, to facilitate future regeneration 

schemes.   

 

Organisational Issues 

Property Review and Action Planning – to put in place the strategy explained in the themes and 

explained in the property categories overleaf, the Council will need to review property issues 

systematically. The reviews will be selected as follows: 

• By geographical area, prioritising this over time.  This might be on a ‘priority area’ basis (e.g. a 

regeneration area which needs urgent attention) or on a “neighbourhood basis” and this can 

sometimes be done by combining more than one neighbourhood management area into one review 

which will speed up the process.  These reviews will not simply involve property matters but will 

require a clear service and corporate input as these will drive the property issues.   

• Using the newly created Annual Property Management Plan to continue the practice of reviewing 

some categories of property across the whole County Borough from time to time as the need arises.  

It will be important that these reviews are followed by action to address the issues and challenges. 

Electronic Property Terrier (TPMS) - As already mentioned under “Performance Measurement” the 

key to the development of effective property reviews and strategies is the availability and 

accessibility of up to date core property data via the Council’s in-house TPM system.  It is 

fundamental to the delivery of the Asset Management function that the development of the 

Page 85



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

57 

database continues in line with the increase in demand of the users. In this regard the joint Property 

and ITC review of TPMS is scheduled during 2017-18. 

A provisional list for the reviews is as follows: 

 

 

• Public Conveniences review 

 

• Depots & Stores – review of Tregelles Court operations  

 

• Day Care services review 

 

• Corporate Agile Working review - ICT & Property. 

 

 

 

 

ACCOMMODATION 

 
• Depots & Stores – review of Tregelles Court operations. 

• Review of Council First Stop Shop operations. 

 

COMMUNITY/NEIGHBOURHOOD 

 
• To develop a programme of neighbourhood area property 

reviews throughout the county for Pontardawe, Afan 

Valley, Swansea Valley, Amman Valley, Port Talbot 

Waterfront, Vale of Neath & Dulais Valley. 

 

REGENERATION 

 
• Regeneration Plan.  

 

 

 

Page 86



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

58 

Property Services and Corporate Capacity  

To carry out the work outlined in this Plan requires a corporate approach and staff resourcing. 

Whilst the Council manages its property corporately via the Property and Regeneration Division, it is 

important that property review work and service review work is integrated, so that review work 

which involves property becomes a corporate activity. In addition to the programme Boards, the 

Council will set up specific project Groups to achieve that. 

 

The resources required to deliver the full programme will be identified and considered in the Action 

Plan as set out in the Annual Property Performance Report. Property and Regeneration will need to 

consider this resourcing issue if the full benefits of the plan are to be realised 

 Property Categories 

OPERATIONAL PORTFOLIO 

 RELATED 

OBJECTIVE 

RELATED 

THEME 

ACTION 

Civic Buildings & 

Satellite Offices 

1 

2 

4 

5 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

 

To continue to consolidate office activities through service reviews 

& ICT strategies. In particular moving forward the Corporate Agile 

Working concept through the Corporate Asset Management 

Group. 

Car Parks 1 

4 

5 

 

2 

 

Review of smarter payment methods. 

Community Centres 1 

2 

3 

5 

 

5 Limited future opportunities for further asset transfer. Council to 

collaborate with new community operators to develop sustainable 

services. 

Leisure Centres 3 

5 

4 

5 

To continue to work in partnership with Celtic Leisure. 

 

Libraries 1 

2 

3 

5 

 

1 

2 

4 

5 

Community Asset Transfer currently maximised. Council to 

collaborate with new community operators to develop sustainable 

services. 

Schools 1 

3 

5 

1 

4 

5 

To continue delivery of the Schools Improvement Programme. 

 

Page 87



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

59 

Social Services 1 

3 

5 

 

1 

2 

3 

5 

 

To complete day care services review and review future office 

requirements. 

Depots & Stores 1 

5 

1 

3 

4 

5 

 

Review of Tregelles Court Operations. 

Playing fields, Pavilions, 

Parks & Open space 

1 

2 

3 

1 

5 

To provide support to the new community groups in the recent 

CAT programme. 

 

Public Conveniences 2 

3 

 

1 

5 

 

To undertake review of the asset base in 2017. 

Theatres, Museums, Art 

Centres & Lifelong 

Learning Centres 

1 

3 

5 

 

2 

4 

Ongoing review against customer expectations. 

 

Commercial, Office & 

Markets Portfolio 

3 

6 

5 

6 

To continue to challenge the portfolio, to increase returns whilst 

continuing to support SME’s. 

 

Industrial Starter Units 3 

6 

 

5 

6 

 

Produce second performance report. 

Traveller Sites 3 

5 

4 To continue to effectively manage the Council’s statutory 

obligations in this area. 

 

Crematoria 3 

4 

5 

 

2 

4 

Review to be undertaken in 2017/18. 

 

Waste Management 4 2 

4 

Proposed capital improvements to the Councils two waste 

recycling facilities in 2017/18. 

 

Residential 5 

6 

6 To review ongoing ownership and management. 

 

Surplus Assets not for 

sale 

6 1 To review opportunities to move assets in this category to assets 

held for sale 

Regeneration Assets 3  Develop a Regeneration Plan to link into the AMP 

 

Page 88



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

60 

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

 RELATED 

OBJECTIVE 

RELATED 

THEME 

ACTION 

 2 6 To achieve £3m Capital target by 2020. 

 

 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

 RELATED 

OBJECTIVE 

RELATED 

THEME 

ACTION 

 6 n/a To explore the acquisition of investment assets as part of the 

Councils financial resilience strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.  

 

 

   

Page 89



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

61 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Asset Action Plan: 2017 
ASSET MANAGEMENT DATA DEVELOPMENT 

& PERFORMANCE 

• TPMS review & development – ICT & Property. 

• Property Performance review 2017 

ACCOMMODATION 

 

 

 

 

Public Conveniences Review: 

• To continue to progress the accommodation strategy. 

The ongoing remodeling of various services and the 

recent ER/VR process requires the continual review our 

building stock and staffing levels within, to ensure that 

we make the most economic use of these assets. 

• Complete a review of public toilets to assess the location 

of the public conveniences across the borough and the 

proximity of these to other public buildings along with 

the frequency of use of these facilities.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

School Improvement Programme: 

 

• Award a design and build contract for the development of 

a new 3 -16 comprehensive school at Dyffryn 

Comprehensive.  Site and options appraisals have been 

carried out to determine the preferred site and to scope 

out the project works and procure a contractor to ensure 

the new school is ready for occupation by September 

2018.Once the new school block is occupied work will 

then follow on to demolish the existing school locks on 

the site and form new playing fields and sports facilities 

(£31m). 

• Progress a design and build contract award for a 11 -16 

welsh medium school for 600 pupils in the south of the 

county for occupation in 2018 (£17m). 

• Progress the design of a new Primary School at Briton 

Ferry for 450 pupils with a project cost of £7.5m and 

prepare contract documentation to award a design and 

build contract to ensure a new school is constructed and 

ready for occupation by September 2019. 

• To continue to plan, manage and deliver the 21
st

 Century 

Schools programme and develop a 5 case business model 

for each project. 

 

REGENERATION 

 

• Progress a feasibility study and options appraisal for the 

Plaza Theatre in Port Talbot. 

• Secure European funding approvals for Port Talbot 

Integrated Transport Hub:- Harbourside Strategic 

Employment Site, 8 Wind Street, Neath; the Plaza, Port 

Talbot and the former Magistrates Court, Port Talbot 

Continue to coordinate and maximise strategic funding 

opportunities to deliver the Council’s priorities 

To deliver the next phases of the VVP programme, 

including the Plaza Cinema, Glanafan School and Police 

Station sites. 

Page 90



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

62 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Asset Action Plan: 2017 cont. 

 

 

•••• The development of the next phase of the Neath Town 

Centre Scheme, including the development of retail and 

residential units at the rear of Boots’ service yard, 

together with the demolition of the former multi storey 

car park and former Tesco and Wilkinsons stores. 

• Continue with the regeneration of Aberavon Seafront, 

including the delivery of a new adventure golf course. 

 

COMMUNITY/NEIGHBOURHOOD 

Community Asset Transfer: 

 

 

• Complete all outstanding community leases in the 

playing fields, pavilions & parks review. 

 

ENERGY/CARBON 

 

• Development and delivery of energy “Invest to Save” 

programme for the Authority’s operational buildings. 

• Increase the awareness of energy/carbon smart 

technology to investigate how the Authority will be able 

to move towards a low carbon smart region. 

• Create schools energy management programme, 

commencing with a pilot cluster group. 

• Complete phase one of the smart low carbon 

demonstration projects study funded by Welsh 

Government. 

• Develop an action plan based on the findings of the 

District Heating Network feasibility report. 

• Implement the action plan of the 2017 Energy 

Performance Report. 

 

COLLABORATIVE 

Asset Management: 

 

• Through National Assets Working Group, e-PIMS, CLAW 

    & ACES 

• CLAW, ACES & The South West Wales Region 

 

COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL /INVESTMENT 

 

• To continue to effectively manage the commercial 

estate. 

 

FORWARD DISPOSALS PROGRAMME • To work towards the generation of £3m of Capital 

Receipts by 2020. 

 

FORWARD FINANCIAL PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS • To continue to identify and realise savings under the 

FFP. 

 

 

Page 91



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

63 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2018 
ASSET MANAGEMENT DATA DEVELOPMENT 

& PERFORMANCE 

 

• TPMS review & development – ICT & Property. 

• Property Performance review 2018 

ACCOMMODATION 

 

• Corporate Agile Working review - ICT & Property. 

• To continue to progress the accommodation strategy. 

The ongoing remodeling of various services requires the 

continual review our building stock and staffing levels 

within, to ensure that we make the most economic use of 

these assets. 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 

• Deliver current phase of the School Improvement 

Programme. 

REGENERATION • Develop Regeneration Plan to link to the AMP 

 

COMMUNITY/NEIGHBOURHOOD 

Community Transfer Support Framework: 

 

Community Asset Transfer: 

 

 

 

Neighbourhood Reviews: 

• Develop a framework for managing the assets already 

transferred to community groups to include monitoring. 

• Continue to support the Asset Management Plan and 

Forward Financial Plan in delivering where achievable 

further transfer of assets to the community. To draft and 

adopt a Community asset Transfer policy for the Council. 

• To develop and implement a programme of 

neighbourhood reviews throughout the county for 

Pontardawe, Afan Valley, Swansea Valley, Amman Valley, 

Port Talbot Waterfront, Vale of Neath & Dulais Valley. 

ENERGY/CARBON 

 

• Implement the action plan of the 2017 Energy 

Performance Report. 

COLLABORATIVE 

 

Asset Management : 

• Set up and develop collaborative working group with 

external Authorities and Organisations. 

• To continue through National Assets Working Group,  

e-PIMS, CLAW & ACES. 

COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL/INVESTMENT 

 

• Deliver second Industrial Property Performance Report. 

• Through representation on the Councils Income 

Generation Working Group, to consider and discuss the 

opportunities of the Council acquiring and managing a 

property investment portfolio. 

FORWARD DISPOSALS PROGRAMME 

 

• Continue to work towards the generation of £3m of 

Capital Receipts by 2020. 

FORWARD FINANCIAL PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS • To continue to identify and realise savings under the FFP. 

 

 Page 92



 

 

NPT Property Asset Management Plan 2016-2021  

64 

 

 

2019 Onwards 
ASSET MANAGEMENT DATA DEVELOPMENT 

& PERFORMANCE 

• Property Performance review 2019 

ACCOMMODATION 

 

• Corporate Agile Working review - ICT & Property. 

• To continue to progress the accommodation strategy. The 

ongoing remodeling of various services and the recent 

ER/VR process requires the continual review our building 

stock and staffing levels within, to ensure that we make the 

most economic use of these assets. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 

• Deliver current phase of the School Improvement 

Programme. 

REGENERATION  

 

COMMUNITY/NEIGHBOURHOOD 

Community Transfer Support Framework: 

 

Community Asset Transfer: 

 

 

 

 

Neighbourhood Reviews: 

 

• Develop a framework for managing the assets already 

transferred to community groups to include monitoring. 

• Continue to support the Asset Management Plan and 

Forward Financial Plan in delivering where achievable 

further transfer of assets to the community. To draft and 

adopt a Community asset Transfer policy for the Council. 

• To develop and implement a programme of neighbourhood 

reviews throughout the county for Pontardawe, Afan 

Valley, Swansea Valley, Amman Valley, Port Talbot 

Waterfront, Vale of Neath & Dulais Valley. 

ENERGY/CARBON 

 

• Implement the action plan of the 2017 Energy Performance 

Report. 

COLLABORATIVE 

 

Asset Management : 

• Set up and develop collaborative working group with 

external Authorities and Organisations. 

• To continue through National Assets Working Group,  

e-PIMS, CLAW & ACES. 

COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL/INVESTMENT 

 

• Deliver second Industrial Property Performance Report. 

• Through representation on the Councils Income Generation 

Working Group, to consider and discuss the opportunities 

of the Council acquiring and managing a property 

investment portfolio. 

FORWARD DISPOSALS PROGRAMME 

 

• Continue to work towards the generation of £3m of Capital 

Receipts by 2020. 

 

FORWARD FINANCIAL PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS • To continue to identify and realise savings under the FFP. 

 

 
Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 8.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 9.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 10.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 117

Agenda Item 11.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 121

Agenda Item 12.
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. To receive the Minutes of the previous Economic and Community Regeneration Cabinet Board held on 20 January, 2017
	4. Economic and Community Regeneration Performance Indicators for Quarter 3 2016/17
	5. Property Asset Management Plan 2016 - 2021
	2016-2021 AMP

	8. Port Talbot Peripheral Distributor Road Phase 2 - Tata and Tata Sports and Social Club, Margam, Port Talbot (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)
	SB Tata Steel

	9. Proposed Release of a Restrictive Covenant from Land at Baglan Industrial Park, Afan Way, Port Talbot (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)
	10. Procurement Tender for the Disposal of the Former Afan Lido Leisure Centre and Overflow Car Park Site (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)
	11. Third Quarter Performance Review 2016-17 Celtic Leisure (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)
	12. Urgency Action 1378 (Exempt Under Paragraph 14)

